O

LINCOLN COUNTY

w— LISPARY QISTRICT s

Lincoln County Library District Board

Regular Meeting

Tuesday September 13, 2022

132 NE 15t
Noon
Newport, OR 97365

| Agenda
Call Regular Meeting to Order President
Approval of the Agenda President

Topic Lead Purpose Outcome

Public Comment President Anyone may speak at
this time

Minutes President Approval

Board Meeting

July 12, 2022

Reports

Board Reports Board Members Information

Director's Report Director Information

Financial Report Director Acceptance

Old Business

Building Purchase Director Information

Update

New Business

Policy Draft Reviews Director Discussion

Bylaws Draft Review Director Discussion

Employee Handbook Director Approval

Review and Approval

Good of the Order Information

Next District Board Information

Meeting

October 11, 2022

Adjourn President Motion







D\

LINCOLN COUNTY

messsse LIBRARY DISTRICT =

Minutes
Lincoln County Library District
Board Meeting
July 12, 2022
132 NE 15" Newport, OR and Zoom
12:00 p.m.

ATTENDANCE—BOARD
Chris Boyle

Virginia Tardaewether
Carla Clark

Susan Garner

ATTENDANCE—STAFF
MaryKay Dahlgreen, District Director

CALL TO ORDER
Chris Boyle called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 12:07 p.m.

CALL THE ROLL AND ESTABLISH QUORUM
Quorum was established.

PUBLIC COMMENT

SWEARING IN OF NEW BOARD MEMBER
Susan Garner was sworn in as LCLD Board member from Zone 5. She will complete Brian
Fodness’ term which expires June 30, 2023.

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
Virginia moved and Susan seconded approval of the Regular Board minutes of June 9, 2022.
Passed unanimously.



BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

Carla noted that the Siletz Valley Friends of the Library are holding a raffle, baskets are on
display at the Siletz Library. Tickets can be purchased at the Library and the raffle drawing will
take place in September.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

We have distributed 400 copies of The Oregon Coast Quest Book to partner and member
libraries for the summer reading program. The funding was provided by the Ready to Read
Grant administered by the State Library of Oregon. We anticipate the final 150 will be
distributed next month.

LCLD will be co-hosting (with Oregon STEM Hub/Sea Grant) a Quest program at Big Creek Park
on Tuesday July 12, 2022 from 5:00 to 7:00 p.m.

MaryKay was on vacation from June 14* through June 17%.
LCLD was closed on the 4™ of July in celebration of Independence Day.
MaryKay will be on vacation July 18-20, 2022.

FINANCIAL REPORT

MaryKay noted that there was a mistake in the June payroll that carried over to July so the
financial report will need to be corrected when the bookkeeper reconciles the July books. That
change will be reflected in the August financial report. Carla moved and Susan seconded
approval of the financial report. Passed unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS

Building Purchase Update

Ron Cole, the owner of the building, is moving forward with his condo sales that will allow him
to finance our purchase of the building. We should have more information at the August
meeting.

Intergovernmental Agreement Discussion and Timeline

The Board had a discussion about the draft IGAs and agreed that we should move forward with
presenting them to the cities for review. Our attorney, Eileen Aikens, has suggested that we
give the cities 60 days to review. MaryKay will send out a letter and the draft agreement in
early August so we can have them signed by mid-October. The funding will begin to be
distributed in December 2022.



NEW BUSINESS

Board Officers Elections and Set Meetings for 2022-2023

Chris Boyle agreed to continue as Board president. MaryKay suggested that the Board needs a
vice-president instead of a treasurer, which would require a change to the bylaws. MaryKay will
bring an update draft to the September meeting for review.

Chris moved and Virginia seconded the motion to have Chris Boyle continue as Board president
and to continue holding monthly meetings on the second Tuesday at noon.

Resolution 2022-7.1 to Change Bank Account Signatures

Carla moved and Virginia seconded approval of Resolution 2022-7.1 to authorize the current
members of the Board, Chris Boyle, Virginia Tardaewether, Carla Clark and Susan Garner, and
the current director, MaryKay Dahlgreen, as check signers. Passed unanimously by voice vote.

SDAO Best Practices Requirements for Insurance Discount

MaryKay explained that Special District Insurance Services provides districts an opportunity to
receive a 10% discount on liability insurance if we implement specific best practices, as defined
by SDIS. The 2022 program requires

1. 2% Affiliate Organization Membership: we are members of the Oregon Library Association.
2. 2% Board Duties and Responsibilities Policy: MaryKay will be working on this to bring to
Board in September

3. 2% Board duties and responsibilities checklist: Board will complete the self-evaluation
checklist at September or October meeting.

4. 2% SDAOQ/SDIS Training: All Board members will have attended one on-line or in person
training. Susan and Carla will have attended regional Board training, Chris and Virginia will
watch either Boardsmanship 310 or Boardroom Dancing, found at www.sdao.com/training-
videos

5. 2% Board member education program: Carla and Susan have enrolled in the SDAO Board
Leadership Academy.

GOOD OF THE ORDER

NEXT DISTRICT MEETING
The next regular meeting of the LCLD Board will be held on Tuesday August 9, 2022 at noon at
the LCLD office and on zoom.

ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 12:55 p.m.






)

LINCOLN COUNTY

e LIBRARY DISTRICT e

Library Directors Report
August and September 2022

General Updates
Included at the end of the Board packet are two activities that were offered by the
Siletz Public Library this summer as part of their Summer Reading Program.

MaryKay will be functioning as a counselor for the two Rotary of Newport exchange
students one from the Czech Republic and one from Germany. Those duties include
meeting with the students at least once a month and being available as an advocate for
them if necessary. The responsibilities are shared with another Rotary of Newport
member. They arrived in August and MaryKay was able to greet both of them at the
airport.

MaryKay and Susan Garner attended a SDAO training in Cottage Grove on August 16,
2022. This was the general overview for new Board members and was very valuable for
both attendees.

MaryKay, along with Laura Kimberly, director of the Newport Public Library, made a
presentation to the Rotary of Newport about the 2022 Lincoln County Reads program.

The Library Services Agreements have been sent to our partner and member libraries
for review and signature. The cities have until November 15, 2022 to review and sign.

Upcoming _
MaryKay will be attending the Special Districts Association of Oregon Summer
Conference and Awards Banquet on Thursday September 15, 2022. This will be
combined with the September SDAO Board meeting.

MaryKay will be on vacation October 5-12, 2022



Lincoln County Reads 2022 is underway and will culminate in two virtual programs on
October 16™. The author, Sylvia Moreno-Garcia will be interviewed in Spanish by
Driftwood PL outreach coordinator, Star Kahn, and then Sylvia will give a presentation
about the book we are reading, Mexican Gothic. Registration information is available for
both programs on the LCLD website.



000000 ¢ LL'Tey'oe $ wvor $ 00°0S¥ 5 5921495 Buunoddy TT09
. . . . . S30IAIBS |RUOISS34OId OTO9
SBVIAIDS pue s|eualen 0009
00°0Z¥'09 S 05°00L'TE S # 0S'00LTE $ 6T'85'2 $ swyauag ashojdwig GOES |e10L
009eL's $ 98'£98°CT $ 9829871 $ C6'686 $ $1yauag JUSWINBY OTES
00t89'9E  $ ¥9°7€8'8T $ | v9Zes'sT $ | LT89rT $ S1y3uag YieaH SOES
syyauag ashAojdw3 0oes
oo'zLz'sty § OB'ELLVPE §  O08'ELL'VVE $ (65°t52"88) $ S331AU3G [SUUOSIAd 000S 1€30L
00TEYY  § | 8S6NLT $  8seLe $ _ 5394 ||0sAed 0STS
0000009  $ vV 6EE'TE $  vieEE'E $ saxel ||0JAed 0025
000v9°019  $ 8LY8960€ $  8/'¥BI60E $ (65°T5£88) $ ¢(wdiano jloshed woy spaid om) sadem pue sayiejes 0TS
SIIIAIDS [SUUOSIId 000S
sainjipuadx
00°€8¥Sb1'E $ S6TET'STIT  § S6'TET'SIOT S TO°9ELTT $ S3NUARY |e0L
00000007 $ PUeH UQ yseD d|qejieay
SIDIAISS
00°€8V'S8Y0'E $ SE'TET'STO'T §  SETET'STOT $ TO"9ELTT $ | SaNU3AIY Q00 |eI0L
| 00'0000T  § 11'926°0C $| | 11'926°0¢C $ 000007 $ 3WOdU SNOIUEJ|ISIN 0061
| 00°000°T s r6'€Z8'Z $ | v6E€T8T $ 10982 $ awodu| 153193U 008Y
0ST69°20V'T § - $ - $ | €2/zz @nuanay xe| Ausdoud 90Ty
0S'T6920VT $ E0'98SESY'T  §  E0'98S'ESK'T $ 9'L¥9'S $ €T/1Z 3nuaAay xe| Auadosd SOT
| 6T6YTET $  eTevT'El $ | 12/0z anuanay xe| Ausdoud yOTY
000000 $ 00'800'ST $  00'800ST Ansaioy 332315 060t
- 00°000°S $ 6T T60°ET $  6I'I60'ET $ | SNOBUE||3ISIN-ZYIS Y80V
| 00°00T $ - S - $ | 15319U-213)IS £30%
| 000002 s - $ - S 213Ns yo Aud-zaayis z8ov
- m - w 19n0-A BD-Z19|IS T80
21311 080
- 00'000% $  LE'869'Y $  LE'869'F $ lueup peay 03 Apeay 020%
ooooo’os § v8'IPSTS $  ¥BTYSTS $ vS'208'E $ saxe] palaa Aisnoinald 090
000009 $ 068287 ¢ 06'8T8CT s | _ Aeiqr) me7 AUno) ujosun osoy
000000T  $ - $| | - $ Ateiqn uopeuBew uoyied Ajog g0y
00000y § | ST'BLSLT $  sTeLsLT $ Momian Aserqr] yoouryd 0zor
| 00000°ST  § 00°000°0T $ 0000001 $ wweip Sutpeay Aojouyds | pue sadaias Aeiqn 01Oy
sanuaavdy goot
SINUIAIY
198png jejuuaig aje( o} |eluuag [enloy aleq 0} Jed |en1dy pouad jualn)

22/1T AlAd pue A1nf
siseq yse) - sainjipuadx3 pue saNUIAIY JO JUdWIelS

2UIsIg Atesqr] Auno) ujooun




00005t $ 00'0YS LS $ 520N |E837 0EY9
00000  $ | - s | - $ 5994 UORIB|I OZYI
00000'ST  $ | 00'8669 $ 008669 $ 3duelnsu| ssauIsng 0T#9
| 00°00S'T $  €81927 $ €8°'T92'T $ 994 "ISUA TOV9
aaueinsulfsaa4 Sunesado 009
"o0'000’0e  $ vrTE9'Y S #  vIesy $| oose $ diyssaquialn/3uules] /l2neiL 0OES I€30L
ooooo’0r  § L0'£69'T $ L0269 $ _ BuISNOH/S|BBIN/[2AR1). TZEY
000000 §  00ZZl $ 00zt $  oosL $ uonensi3vy TZE9
- $ - $ [oAe4] /Sutulel) /uonensiSoy 0ZE9
| 000000T  $ | LEOILT $  LEOULT $ so94 diysIaquain OTE9
diyssaquia/3uiuielj /jaaell 00€9
00°000°09T _§ 95'9ST'69  $ #  95°9ST'69 $ TE'L6E'6 $ sasuadi3 2210 [e4oUBD OE0Y (€30L
00000  $ 60°€S $|  60€S $ | sa|iddns 8019
000007 $  Tve9l $  Twest $ 3oueuAUIE £0T9
000009 $ bLT9vE $ | vLTOVE $ ST'Y9E $ 1an3 9019
_ - s| | - $ SueA S0T9
- s| | - $ _ sa|jddns 0019
000007  $| | 89'8LL $  898LL $  6TLS $ 12318 @101 2809
000007  $ | O8VEE $  O8VEE $ _ a8equeo q11 1809
00000Y  $ 0T8T $ 107187 $  L66YT S 13wia3u pue auoyda|dL 0809
00000t  $ 00'00Z8T $ 0000781 $ 00'00€'T $ JuBY 609
= s = $ seo 809
00000  $ 80°LYL $ 80w $  osts $ sayddng pue adueuajuleN ££09
00000 $ | TU'EEOT $| | 11'€60T $ APIN9313 909
_ | | - s| | - $ SBRIRN PUE IUSY SL09
00000's  $ | LOEBY'T $ | LOE6Y'T $ 00001 $ suonejay JIqnd 0209
00000 $| | LL69T $ 69T $| | _ S|euR1e|N |eUOISSa}01d G909
o0000's $  vLse $ v $ €975 $| 283504 0909
1000000 $ - $ - $| | _ Q101 - Y20 9509
_ | 00'8E0'TT $ | 00'8€0'TT $ 00000 $ J31n0) 20UBY|lY 3PEISED SIGIO 5509
00000s  § - $| | - s| | _ a8ealIN 0509
000002 $  (87T0CE $|  8T0CE $  oovee $ a5e31 Ja1do) 0¥09
00000 $  00PE9TZ  § | O0'HE9TT $ _ SuoRN|0g 421eMA] 9E09
000002  $  E€LTeLT $| | ertes't $ 0099 $ sasuadx3 aulluQ €09
00°000°S $ | 008SYT $  00'8SK'T $ . . judwdinb3 320 €09
00'000°S $  Svoop $  Svogv $ | L9°0E $ | sanddng 20 €09
sasuadx3 300 [essuUdD) 0E09
0000059 $ ## 20600t $ # 20°600'SY $ | 00'S0LT $ S32|AIBS [EUO|SS2J0Id OTO9 2301
000000 $ 00°008°9 $ 0000089 $ SIOIAIS "ISIIAl STO9
STTES'S $ | STTES'S $ sadIAI3g [e42U39 1109
00000 $ 00'000°0T $ 0000001 $ _ s3dIM3S 11 €109
000007 $ 00'S52' $| | oo'ssz $ 00'SST' $ sao13s |e821 7109
198png jeluuaig a1eq 03 [eluuag |en)dy 21eQ 03 JB3A |EN1IY pouad uaLInN)




Aepno jende) ooz

T IvY'T I waunsnipy 3A vd - 0T69
asuadx3 pazio8aieaun
9T0ZZL6TT § 9T 0ZTL6TT $  TE696TT $ S30IAI3S PUE SjelIalelN 0009 1€301
S6'SYE $ | Se'SHE $ S6'ST $ s394 1 sadley] jueg 009
00704596 § | 00°Z0L'S96 $ - $ WawWasINquiay Aseqn 0099 je30L
00ELv'Tve  § 00°EL¥'ZHE $ - $ Hodpjem
00'¥S6°76 $ 005626 $ - $ opajoL
00°ET6'LPE $ OO'ET6'LVE $ - $ uvodman
00z9c'z8T 0029€Z8¢ $ - S A ujoaun
jugwissinquuiisy >.-w._n_._ 0099
000ZEE9  § BOSVEBY  §  69'SVESY $ z0°028°8 $ wawdopaaaq Asesqri 0zs9 [E10L
000z60  § 6S'EIE'BZ  $ #  6SEIEST $  vT620T $ | 22115 0559 301
. 0019 $ 00197 $| | _ InpiasN 73S £959
000007  §  (STE6w $  LSTE6Y $  oo€zeT $ @oueuatulely g J1eday 233)iS 7959
000z8T  $ 8£880'T $ 858801 s | Buiwwe.Soid 213)is 1959
00°00£ $ 890907 $ 890907 $  ooose $ uLe|Y Z33IS 0959
1000007  $  TE'BOOT $  TE'B00T $  69EE $ se9 2191IS 6559
00000  $ 82’8007 $  8Z'800C $ st $ auoyd pue 18uIaI| ZIYIS 8559
00000 $  ¥9016 $  ¥90T6 $ 00°0Y $ asea Ja1do) 213|IS £559
0000¥Z  $ 00096 $ 00096 $ _ 13M3S/I31BM Z3IS 9559
00°000'8 $  eeTery $ 6€TTY'Y $ 1Ly $ Wawdojasq uowIs||0) Z13|1S §559
000007 S 68'9L1°C $  689LTT $  6ve9t $ A9l 218)IS ¥559
000002  $  t0T8TL $  v0T8IL $ 866l $ $32135 pue sayddng ‘sielaleN 1559
_ _ _ _ 73YIS 0SS9
00'00V'ET  $ €0'ST9'ZT $  €0'ST9ZT $ 69'68€'S $ saseqeleq 2UlIUO SZS9 1LI0L
_ _ - $ - $ _ seseqeleq ‘sl 6259
000007 ¢ LS'L20'C $ | LS1207T $ (15anD a8e3112H) 152NDOId 8259
00°00% $ 0000z $| o000z $ _ sagensuen oBuel £z59
000006 $  9VBE0T  §  9v/SE0T $ | 6968E’S $ (2npIaAO) 0DZAIRIGH 9259
saseqeleq aulUO 259
00'000'6T $ | £0'L9g'L $ 8 L0498 $  ertovt $ sayeaqr) [e2o] Uoddns 0zs9 |eroL
100000 $ | 098 $  L0298°€ $ 6T'TOV'T $ swie.80.4 Suipeay JaLLNS £759
000000l § - $ - s (Ateuqr) Bewj uowied Ajjog) s193foud [e122ds £259
_ | 00'005°€ $  0000SE $ saueiqr] |e207 naddng 1259
u:wEQO_w>OD Em.:..‘_._ 0299
00°89L°02TT $ LL6TT'SS  $ # | LL6TT'SS $ €0'9S6°E $ 3Iua13j94/ueo] Aseiqiaau)/3uidojele) 00s9 1eloL
000000ST  § | £L'622SS $ | LL6T2'ss ~$  €o9se'E $ J100 T159
- S - S 22uaI949Y/ueo] Auesqiusiul/BuiSojere) OTS9
00'89L°0L6T § - $ - $ 53310195 AJBIqIT P31OLIIUOD 5059
wawdojanaq Aleiqii/iusawasinquitay 00S9
00000’z § €8'66L'8 $  €8'66L'8 $ - $ duesnsul/saa4 Sunesado 009 |B301
198png |eluualg ?eq o3 |eluuag |en3dy aieq 03 Jeax |eEn1DY poldd Juasn)




v°88L688°T

S  DO'EBV'EI'E S | 9S'V69'ELST S| | 95'PEY'ELS'T S

|(60°vZETO) $

saJnjipuadx3 |ejol

00°9pS'90T ¢

asue|eg Suipu3 pajendosddeun

00°LSTIST  §

Ad>uaSunuo) SunesadQ |erol

00°000'ST $ 9217496 JSIN -GT09 O3 A0
00°£LST‘99T & | Asuadunuo) 8unesadg
| 00'0000T  § Aepng jende) 000£ |R301L
UeA 0Z0L
| 00°000°0T S juawade|day uep TT0L

uawdinb3 pue ainyuing 3010 0TOL

j23png |eluualg 931eQ 03} [elUUDg jenloy a1eQ 03 JBIA

|ENIOY POLIad UdLIND)




00'0zt'09 $ 69'8ST'VE § | 69'8STVE S 6T'85Y'C $ s)yauag 29hojdw3 QOES 2301
009€L'€sT 8LLSS'ST S 8LLSSET $ 26'686 $ S3|Jauag WaWAINRY OTES
00'v89'9  $ T6'00E'0Z $  16°00€°07 $ LT8IY'T $ SHy2UIg Y1|esH SOES
syjauag asAojdw3 poss
00'ZL2'sL9 $ YI'9L9'2LE §  YU'9L9TLE $ vE'206°LT $ S8IIAIIS [3UU0SIad 000S (8301
00Z€9Y $ | 8TIVET $  8TIV6T $ | 0L'96T $ $98 ||0JAed 0SZS
0000009 $  LVOLYVE  §  LVOLYPE $ €0'LET'T $ saxe] ||0JAed 00ZS
000V9'0T9 $  GEESTSEE $  GEEST'SEE $  19'895'sT $ sa8e/M pue sale|es 00TS
SINNIBS |9uuosiad 000S
saJnypuadxy
00°ESY'SYYE $ Sr'6Y9'vZ9T §  SY6rore9T $ 0S'LTt'6 3 SaNUBASY 2301
00°000°00% $ PUBH UQ Yse) a|gejieny
SAJINIBS
00°€8Y'SYO’E $ S'6v9'vZ9'T §  SY'ev9'vIo’T $ 05°LTH'6 $ Sanuanay 000 (€101
00'0000T $ TT'926'0  $  11'926°0C $ ” aW0DU| SNOBUE||ISIA 0061
000007 S EE'TIT'E $  €E79T'E $ 6€'8EE $ aWO0dU| 153431U] 008Y
| 0S'T69'LOV'T $ - $ - $ | _ £2/Zz anuaAsy xey Auadoud 90Ty
0S'T69°LOV'T $  TTSS9'9SK'T $ | ZT'SS9'9SY'T $  6T'690€ s Zz/Tz anuaasy xe] ALiadoud SOTY
6T6PT'ST $  6TGYI'ET $ T12/0T @nuanay xe] Auadoid vOTY
000000 $  GSSTLO'6T $ | SSTLO6T  S5E90Y $ A1153104 31835 0601
00000's  $  6T'TEOET  $  GT'T6OET $ . SNO3UE||93SIN-Z13)1S 780%
| 00°00T s - s| | - 8 159J91U|-2331IS €80V
000007 $ - $ - S 239)15 40 AND-219|1S Z80Y
- $ - $ 1an0-A118D-73)1S T8OV
233(1S 080Y
000006  $ LE'869Y $  L£869% $ 1ueJ9 peay 01 Apesy 00V
0000008 $ TT88Y'ES  $  TZ'88Y'ES S LEOYE'T $ saxe] paiAaT Ajsnolaaid 090
000009 $ 06'878CT $  06'878°7T $ | _ Aseqr] meq Aluno) ujoaun psov
000000T $ @ - s | - $ Asesg uoneuigew) uoued Ajjoa 0£0y
00000 $  8TBLSYUT S 8TBLSLI $ JHomIaN Alelqr jooulyd 0zoy
00000'ST $  000000T $  00°000°0T $ juesn Suipeay ASojouyds | pue sadlaIas AJeiqr 0Oy
SINUDAIY 000
ECLITET T )
198png |eluuaig a1eq 0} |ejuuag len1dy e 03 Jeap |EN1IY pouRd WaND)

€Z/72 AlAd pue 1SNONY
siseg yse) - mwh:u__u:wnxm t:m SONUIAIY mo juawajels
PUIsIg Adeaqiy Ajuno) ujooury




0000007 $| [ L€920T  § | LE9T0C $ BUISNOH/s|edIN/[oARIL ZTEY
0000001 $ 004227 $ 0012zt S| uone.nsigay TZ€9
- m - m _w>m.._._.\m:_:_mg._.\co_um.‘_um_mmm 0789
000000 §  TvoLTT  §  TWOLZT $  00°€ST $ s394 diyssaquia N OTEY
diyssaquidp/3uluielt fjanel] 00€9
| 00000°09T _$ SS9LSTL  §  SS'9LSTL $ LTTTET $ sasuadx3 22J0 [eJauap OE0Y [€30L
00000 $ 60'€S $  60'€S $ sayjddns 8019
000007 $ 27691 $  Trest $ @DUBUBIUIB £OTI
000000 §  TL0T8E  § | TLO0T8'E $  86%8SE $ 12n4 9019
- $ - $ SueA SOT9
| - s| | - $ sa)jddns 0019
000007 $ | 00'TE8 $  00TH8 $ €79 $ 1218/ G101 2809
00000T  $ | OLT9E $ | 0L79¢ $ a8equen 101 1809
000007 $  86T96T $  86T96T $ L6'6VT $ Jausa)u| pue auoydaja L 0809
00000 $ | 0000S6T $  00°005'6T $ 00°00€°T $ 1U3Y 6209
| | - $ - s ” 589 8/09
000007  $ 80°L08 $  80°L08 $ 0009 $ s3l|ddng pue adueuajuleiN LL09
000007 $  8YYST'T  $  SYYSIT $ 911313 9209
_ - $ - $ SONIIAN PUE Y G£09
| 00000S  $  LO€6ST  §  LO'E€6ST $ 00001 $ suoie[ay 21and 0£09
00000 $  LL69T $ | ez s | . S|eLRIBI [BUOISS3J04d S909
| 00000s $  6T'8EC $  6TBEL $ a8e1sod 0909
000000T  $ - $| | - $ @121-2¥20 9509
00'BE0'TT  $  00'8E0'TT $ 431In0D 32Uel|lY 3PEISED SIGIO SS09
000005 $ - S| - $ a8eaIN 0509
000002 $  lgSTY'E $  L8'STYE $ 00'72Z $ asea 421doD 0709
00000y $  00VESTZ $  00VESTT $ suonn|os Je1emAg 9€09
000002 $  EL'88LT  § | EL'BBLT $ 0099 $ sasuadx3 auljuQ €£09
00000's $  008SK'T  §  008SY'T $ . Juawdinb3 10 Z£09
1 00000s  $  SY09F $  sroor $ sa)|ddns 22140 TE09
sasuadx3 YO jesauas 009
10000059 $ 0|99 $  20'TZT99 $ 00'€ETT'TZ $ S2DIAIBS [EUO|SS2404d OTOY (8301
00000005 $  O00ET8'9  $  OO'ET8’Y $ 00€T $ $901A43S *SIN STO9
_ | sTTEs's  § STTES'S $| | $a0IAJBS [RI2UBD #T09
000006 §  00°000°0E $  00'000°0€ $ | 0000002 $ seo|uas LI ET09
00000 ¢  00SSTT $  00'SSZT $ | sa01AIRS €597 2109
000000 §  LLTESTT § LLTSTT $ | 0000T'T $ 590135 8uUnUN022Y TT09
SIJIAIDS |BUOISSD)OId 0TO9
S92IAIDS pue sjelvlelN 0009
u@ﬂﬂ:ﬂ jeluuaig 9jeq o} |jeuusg jenjay aie( 0} 4B9A [enldy pouad juauan)




00'79t’28T  § 00°79€°782 S - S A} ujoour]
uswasinquiay Ateiqr] 0099
00'0Z€'e9  $ TELZT0S $ | | TE€LZT0S $ 29121 $ wauwdojanag Aieiqn] 0zs9 €301
000260t  $  TSTVE'6Z §  TSTVEST $ 616 $ 23315 0559 [e30L
00719 $ | 0019T $ INJISSN Z3BYS £959
00000  $ LS'T66'Y $  LSTE6T $ 0009 $ | ouBUBUIE 73 JIRdaY Z39)IS 7959
000Z8'T  $ 8/'880°T S 88801 $ Suluweigold 719)1s 1959
0000 $  89°090°T $  890090°T $ WielY 233)IS 0959
000002 $  8EVZOT $  8EVI0T $ 1 90'9T S| Se9 Z19|IS 6559
00000 $  O0EWSIT $  0EVSTT $ Z0'9vT S| 3UoYd pue 13uIAlu) Z33|IS 8SS9
00000 S ¥9°056 $  ¥9°0S6 $ 00°0v $ asea Ja1do] Z13)iS £559
0000V $ 00096 $ 00096 $ JaMas/Ia1eM ZI3)IS 9559
000008 $  88'€S6V $  8%'€S6Y $ GVILY $ JUaWdojaARQ UONIB||0) ZI3IS §559
00000 $  ST9ET $  VST9ET $ ' 59°58T S| AN211939|3 71315 1559
000007 $  vOZ8TL $  vozsTL $ §31A135 pue sa)iddng ‘s|euale 1559
_ | ] 239115 0559
00'00b'EST  $  €0°ST9ZT §  €0'ST9ZT $ - $ saseqeieq auluQ $zs9 (€101
_ - $ - $ _ saseqe1eq ISIA 6759
00000  $ LS'LT0'T $ L5120 $ (3sanp a3ej1ap) 3s3nD0Id 8259
| 0000 $ 00002 $ o000z $ saBenguey oBuen £259
1000006 $  OY/8E0T S 9v'/8E0T $ (3AtipI3A0) 09ZAIRIAN 9759
saseqele( aul|uQ SZS9
00°0006T $  Lt'69T'B $  (re9r’s $ ov'z08 $ saue.qr] [e207 Woddns gzs9 je3o)
00'0006 $  /v'699% S Lv'699F $ | 0v'z08 $ sweJgoud Sulpeay Jawwns 4759
| 00°0000T  § | - $ - $ _ (Areuqry “Bew uopeq Ajjoq) s1afold |e1dads €259
| 00°00S€ $  0000S€ $ saueiq 207 Loddns Tz59
swdopasg Aleiqi] 0zs9
- 00'89L°02TZ $ SU'Z68'€9 $  Sb'Z68'€9 $ 897998 $ 20UaI3j3Y/ueo] Aeiqipaiul/3utSojele) pos9 |e10)
000000ST $  SY'768ED $  Sv'Z68'E9 $ 897998 $ 2100 1159
- S - S 9duaJajay/ueo Aseaqiuaiul/BuiSojeie) 0159
| 00'89L°0L6°T $ - $ - s $32IAI35 AJRJqI Pa3IRIIUOD G059
WawdojaAag Aleiqil/uswasinquidy 00sg
0000052 $ £8'66L8 $  €£8'66L'8 $ - $ @dueunsu|/saa4 Supsesado pov9 [e30L
L 0000SE S 000bS $  000vS $ _ $90130N |e837 0£9
00000  $ - s | - $ $994 U01I3|3 0ZH9
00000'ST $ 008669 $  00'866'9 $ | 3dueunsuj ssauisng OTv9
0000ST  $ | £8°T97T $  E8T97T S $994 2SIl TOV9
d3ueunsuy/saad Sunessdo 0ov9
00'000°0E $ 6L'025'S $ | 6L0ZS'S $ 00°€ST $ diysiaquiapy/Buturel | /janes] 00E9 |eI0L
128png jeluuaig ?)eq o3 jeluuag lenyoy 33eq 0} Jea, |en2y pouad uaun)




LT'SYS'vI8'T S | 00°ESY'EIV'E €L°LE6'BE9'T § | €L'LE6'BEY'T S 0T°'8e'v9 S saJnjipuadx3 [elol
00'9%¥590T $ 9ouejeg Suipu3 pareudosddeun
00°ZST'IST § Asuaguniuo) Supesadp |erol

| oor000°ST S 32IAI3S JSIW -ST09 03 A0
| 00°2ST°99T § Aousdunuo) Buiiesado
00°000°0T S . Aepang |eyide) 000L 2101
. . ueA 0Z0L
00°0000T S juawade|day uep TTOL
. _ juawdinb3 pue ainjuing 3140 0TOL
Aepno exde) 000L
I Ivw'T $ wawisnipy 34 VdD - 0169
. asuadx3 paziioSaiedun
. 06'20T‘ZET'T $ 06°20T‘2ET'T S LS'L86'EE S SIIAIDS pue sjel4dle|Al 0009 [BI0L
S6'19€ $  S6T9E $ 0091 $ s994 '3 sa8.1eYD Jueg 0049
00°70L‘S96 $ 00°Z04'596 S - S juswasInquiay Ateqr] 0099 [elol
00'ELrTve S | O0'ELVTVT S - 3 vodplem
00vs6'ze S 0075626 ) - S opajof
00'ET6'LVE S 00'€T6'LVE ) - S | HodmdN
193png [euuaig 9jeQ 01 [EIUUAg [enoy 218Q 03 JE3A|  [ENIIY POLIad JudLIN)




Circulation Policy

The Siletz Public Library is a member of the Lincoln County Library District and shares in the
Chinook Library Network by providing patrons with easy access to not only our collection but
the collections of the public libraries in Toledo and Waldport, and community college libraries:
Clatsop Community College, Oregon Coast Community College and Tillamook Bay Community
College, as well as the Lincoln County Library District.

Circulation Policies

The Siletz Public library is supported by the Lincoln County Library District and we offer
services at no cost to residents of Siletz and to residents of Lincoln County.

Those wishing to obtain a library card must present a current form of photo identification such as
a driver’s license or Oregon I.D. card showing his/her current resident address. Additional proofs
that may be required include:

« Utilities billing in the applicant’s name
* Rent receipt
* Mailed bank statement

To receive a library card, patrons 18 years and older or emancipated minors must complete an
adult application for a library card. On this form, we ask that the applicant provide the contact
information of someone at a different address as an alternative method of contact. The applicant
is required to sign the form accepting responsibility for the use of the card. Patrons 17 or younger
must complete the legal minor application for a library card which includes the contact
information for the parent or guardian accepting responsibility for the child’s use of the card.

Library cards are active for 2 years. Renewal includes verification of contact information. The
cost of a lost card is currently $1.00.

The Siletz Public Library also participates in the Oregon Passport Card Program. The application
is completed as usual with the addition of the applicant showing the library card from their home
library.

Summary of the Oregon Library Passport Program

* The Passport Program is a voluntary, opt-in program and a library’s participation is free. A
library’s choice to participate determines whether its patrons can participate.

1 Draft 09-02-2022



» The Passport Program is open to all legally-established public libraries, and both public and
private academic libraries.

» Borrowing is free of charge to the patron and activity is patron initiated: patron visits a
Participating Library and registers for a card; patron complies with that library’s policies for
personal identification, checkout periods, limits, etc.; patron checks out materials; patron returns
the materials to the owning library; and patron is responsible for costs of any overdue fees or lost
materials. There is no library-to-library intervention required.

« The Participating Library is allowed to set its own limits on use by Passport patrons. These may
be different from local patrons’ limits. For example, local patrons may be able to check out 50
items at a time, but Passport patrons have a checkout limit of 10 items at a time.

» The Program provides access to materials: checking out materials, placing holds on materials,
etc. The Participating Library can determine what other services, if any, are extended (for
example, Inter-Library Loans from outside the area or access to online resources).

» In order to participate, patrons are required to have a Home Library card. This becomes his or
her “Passport” to other Participating Libraries. Patrons present their Home Library cards at each
Participating Library in order to register for cards at those libraries.

» Patrons who reside in areas that are unserved by a public library may purchase a library card at
a neighboring library. This becomes their Home Library for the purposes of this Program.

* Participating Libraries will be surveyed annually and may be asked to survey Passport Program
patrons as well.

* Participating Libraries will identify participants in borrowing records using a unique patron
code or type, for example, “Passport Program,” in order to facilitate statistical data-gathering and
to allow local libraries to set their own use parameters.

» The Oregon State Library will provide support via the Libraries of Oregon website, including
lists of Participating Libraries, basic rules of the program for libraries and the public, and
participation documents for libraries.

Interlibrary Loan

The Siletz Public Library participates in the Interlibrary loans program in accordance with the
Oregon Library Association’s Interlibrary Loan Code for Oregon Libraries and the Online
Computer Library Protocol. Currently, there is no cost to patrons for this service.

The Library will attempt to meet the needs of its patrons primarily by developing a diverse
collection. However, in the event that the Library’s circulation and reference materials are
inadequate to meet a particular need, the Library will, upon patron request, attempt to borrow
desired material from other libraries. The Library will honor other lending institutions’ policies,
including loan periods, replacement charges, and non-renewal or in-library-use policies.

The Library will not borrow materials from institutions charging an interlibrary loan fee.

In fulfilling interlibrary loan requests from other libraries, the Library will charge no fees

2 Draft 09-02-2022



and will process all such requests in a timely fashion. Information about the process of
requesting an Interlibrary item from a library employee. Loan fines and replacement costs for
items borrowed through interlibrary loan are established by the lending library and are the
responsibility of the borrowing patron.

Institution Cards

Cards to be used by an institution may be issued at the discretion of the Library Manager. The
person signing the application will be completely responsible for regulating use of the card and
for all materials checked out on the card. The library will not monitor individuals’ use of their
institution card.

Loan Periods and Renewals

The loan period for all circulating materials, except DVDs, is two weeks. The loan period for
DVDs is one week. No more than 12 DVDs may be checked out on a patron’s card at a time.
Patrons may renew materials by contacting the library in person, by phone, or online, on or
before the due date or during a seven-day grace period following the due date up to 3 times if no
other patron has a hold on that item. An item will not be renewed if another person is waiting for
it, if it has already been renewed three times, or if it is more than seven days overdue. Patrons
can reach their accounts online by going to the Chinook Library Network page
(https://www.chinooklibraries.org/) and entering their library card number and password.

Overdues

The Siletz Public library participates with the other members of the Chinook Library Network
who are in the Lincoln County Library District in providing its overdue policy. Patrons will be
notified by mail, email, and/or telephone when materials they have checked out become overdue.
This is done at one week overdue, two wecks overdue, and three weeks overdue. At three weeks
overdue, the patron is requested to remit payment for the overdue items. If the items or payment
are still not received, the patron is notified the failure to return library materials is a violation of
Oregon Statutes and statutory penalties will apply.

The library will not check out materials to any patron with outstanding materials or fees.
Borrowing privileges may be restored when materials are returned or the replacement cost is

paid.

The Siletz Public Library does not collect fines for overdue materials.

3 Draft 09-02-2022



=1



Patron Confidentiality Policy

The legal custodian of records for the Siletz Public Library is the Director of the Lincoln County
Library District. As the legal custodian of records, the LCLD Director is the person responsible
for responding to any request for library records or information about a library user.

The LCLD Director may designate one or more library employees to serve as persons
responsible for responding to any request for library records of information when the Library
Director is absent or unavailable.

1. Siletz Public Library adopts this policy to recognize records identifying the names and
personal information of library users and their circulation records are confidential in nature and
are exempt from public records disclosure.

2. Siletz Public Library employees will be advised that such records shall not be made available
to any person (s), corporation, or agency of a state, federal, or local government except pursuant
to such process, order or subpoena as may be authorized under the authority of, and pursuant to,
federal, state, or local law relating to civil, criminal, or administrative discovery procedures or
legislative power.

3. Siletz Public Library will resist the issuance of enforcement of any such process, order, or
subpoena until such time as a proper showing of good cause has been made in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

Upon receipt of such process, order, or subpoena, the library’s officers will consult with their
legal counsel to determine if such process, order or subpoena is in proper form and if there is a
showing of good cause of its issuance; if the process, order, or subpoena is not in proper form or
if good cause has not been shown, they will insist that such defects be cured.

Procedures for implementing “Policy on Confidentiality of Library Records”

1. The library staff member receiving the request to examine or obtain information relating to
circulation or other records identifying the name of library users, will immediately refer the
person making the request to the director of the Lincoln County Library District, who shall
explain the confidentiality policy.

2. The director, upon receipt of such process, order, or subpoena, shall consult with the
appropriate legal officer assigned to the institution to determine if such process, order, or
subpoena is in good form and if there is a showing of good cause for its issuance.

3. If the process, order, or subpoena is not in proper form or if good cause has not been shown,
insistence shall be made that such defects be cured before any records are released. (The legal
process requiring the production of circulation or other library records shall ordinarily be in the
form of subpoena duces tecum {bring your records} requiring the library director to attend court
or the taking of his/her deposition and may require him/her to bring along certain designated
circulation or other specified records.)

1 Draft 7/28/2022



4. Any threats or unauthorized demands (i.e., those not supported by a process, order, or
subpoena) concerning circulation and other records identifying the names of library users shall
be reported to the appropriate legal officer of the institution.

5. Any problems relating to the privacy of circulation and other records identifying the names of
library users which are not provided for above shall be referred to the library director.

Advisory USA PATRIOT Act

The Siletz Public Library has had a long-standing policy prohibiting the disclosure of
information about patrons, or the materials they borrow, to any third party. Oregon State Revised
Statute 192.502, exempts library patron and circulation records from being considered as "public
records"”, thus protecting their privacy.

The 2002 USA PATRIOT Act allows Federal authorities to apply for warrants to seize records of
all types, including those from libraries. Library officials are prohibited from disclosing to any
person that such records have been requested. The Federal law supersedes both library policy

and Oregon state law. Therefore, if requested by Federal authorities with a proper warrant, this
Siletz Public Library must release a patron's record to those authorities will continue to protect
the confidentiality of patron records to the extent allowed by law.

The Siletz Public Library adheres to the following best practices:

Gather only the data necessary to perform the specific service

Keep the data only as long as needed to provide the service or to meet the Library's record
retention rules (do we have any?)

Limit access to the data to those who must use it in the performance of their assigned duties

Keep the data in a secure place

2 Draft 7/28/2022



Unattended Children Policy

The Siletz Public Library welcomes and encourages library use by children. Providing
quality materials and services to young people is one of our primary responsibilities. Parents
and guardians are advised, however, that the Library is a busy, public place and that they are
responsible for monitoring and regulating their children’s behavior, safety, and welfare while
on library premises.

Although it is a Library priority to provide a safe and appropriate environment for visitors of all
ages, the Library staff is not responsible for providing long- or short-term care for unattended
children.

In accordance with Oregon state law (ORS 163.545), children 10 years of age and younger must
be accompanied and supervised by a parent or other responsible caregiver who is 12 years of age
or older. Older children (age 11 and older) are welcome to use the library independently,
however, responsibility for minors using the library rests with the parent/guardian. Caregivers
who choose to leave a child unattended must first ensure that the child is capable of proper
library behavior and of observing Library expectations for appropriate use of library materials.
Caregivers who neglect to provide proper supervision of their child and regulate disruptive
behavior may be asked to leave the Library with their child. Parents/legal guardians will be held
responsible for damage to Library property caused by their children.

If a child is left unattended, Library staff will attempt to contact the caregiver before calling
authorities. In the case of an immediate safety concern, staff will contact authorities immediately
and then attempt to contact the caregiver. Staff will stay with the person until another responsible
party arrives.

1 Draft 7/15/2022






Siletz Public Library
255 SE Gaither St.
PO Box 130

Siletz, OR 97365
541-444-2855

Object Donation Form

I am/we are the owner/owners of the object/s described in the schedule below and I/we hereby donate such
object/s to the SILETZ PUBLIC LIBRARY.

The object/s donated is/are not encumbered in any way whatsoever.

I/'We acknowledge that the donation as such will result in the SILETZ PUBLIC LIBRARY becoming the
owner at law of the said object/s, with all rights and powers to do with the said object/s as it sees fit. This
may include disposal, which includes in the first instance, efforts to return the object/s to the donor or the
donor’s heirs.

I/We consent to the SILETZ PUBLIC LIBRARY retaining the personal information disclosed below.

[/We give permission to the above named to use the information I/we have provided about the history of
the object/s for future museum purposes, including research, public research access, displays and
publications.

Restrictions on public access to information provided:

The donation made herein by me/us will take affect at the time the SILETZ PUBLIC LIBRARY takes
actual control of the object/s and until that time I/we remain responsible for the said objects.

Name of donor/s:

Contact details of donor/s: (include address and telephone number/s)

Signature/s: Date:

Schedule of item/s donated







Lincoln County Library District

Board By-laws

ARTICLE I: NAME; STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This municipal corporation shall be called the Lincoln County Library District, having
been organized under the provisions of ORS 357.216 to 357.286, and exercising the
powers and authority, and assuming the responsibilities as described in said statutes.

The purpose of this municipal corporation shall be to provide all Lincoln County
residents with excellent library service.

ARTICLE II: FISCAL YEAR;, BUDGET

The fiscal year shall be July 1 - June 30. Each year the district shall determine and fix
the amount of money to be levied and raised by taxation. The total amount in dollars
and cents shall not exceed the established permanent tax base of $0.2465 per $1,000
of the true cash value of all taxable property and any approved local option tax
(currently $0.0900 per $1,000) within the district computed in accordance with ORS
308.207.

ARTICLE Ill: BOARD OF DIRECTORS; OFFICERS

Section 1.  The Board of Directors shall be made up of five members; each elected to
represent the zone in which the member resides. Elections shall be held in May in odd
numbered years; members take office July 1 of the same year. The term of office is four
years.

Section 2. The officers shall be a President and a Vice-President; they shall be
elected from the current members of the Board of Directors at the first Board meeting of
the fiscal year, taking office at that meeting after the election is held. The district
librarian shall be the Secretary for the district [ORS 357.226].

Section 3.  The district shall require bond or crime insurance covering any member of
the governing body or any officer or employee of the district who is charged with
possession and control of district fund and the bond or insurance shall be paid from
district funds.

Section4.  Vacancies shall be filled by appointment by a majority of the remaining
members of the Board of Directors. If a majority of the positions is vacant, or if a majority
cannot agree, the vacancies shall be promptly filled by the county commissioners.

[ORS 198.320] An appointee shall reside in the zone in which the vacancy occurs.

9/13/2022



Section 5.  Directors may be recalled according to procedures outlined in ORS
198.410-198.440.

Section 6.  Directors may receive an amount not to exceed $20.00 for each day or
portion thereof as compensation for services performed as a member of the governing
body. Such compensation shall not be deemed lucrative. The district shall provide for
reimbursement of a director for actual and reasonable travel and for other expenses
necessarily incurred by a director in performing official duties.

Section7. The President shall serve a term of one year, with the option of running for
another term. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors,
authorize calls for any special meetings, appoint all committees, execute all documents
authorized by the Board of Directors, co-sign checks and generally perform other duties
associated with that office.

Section8.  The Vice-President shall serve a term of one year, with the option of
running for another term. The Vice-President will co-sign checks, preside at meetings of
the Board of Directors when the President is not available, and perform other duties
designated by the Board of Directors and associated with that office.

Section9.  The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a true and accurate record of
all meetings of the Board of Directors; shall issue or cause to be issued notice of all
regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors, including proper notification of
the media and all persons who have requested regular notice; co-sign checks; and shall
perform or cause to be performed such other duties as are generally associated with
that office.

ARTICLE IV: MEETINGS

Section 1.  The regular meetings shall be held each month, the date and hour to be
set by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting (first meeting of the fiscal year). The
location shall be a facility within Lincoln County which complies with current Oregon
laws regarding access for disabled persons.

Section 2.  The annual meeting, which shall be for the purpose of the election of
officers and adoption of an annual report, shall be held at the time of the regular
meeting every year in July or the first meeting of the fiscal year.

Section 3.  The order of business for regular meetings shall include, but not be
limited to, the following items which shall be covered in the sequence shown, so far as
circumstances will permit:

a) Call meeting to order

b) Roll call of members and introductions

c) Adoption of the agenda

2
9/13/2022



d) Review of past minutes of previous regular meeting and any
intervening special meeting

e) Board member Reports

f) Financial Report

g) District librarian’s report

h) Committee reports - if any committees have been formed

i) Public Comment

j) Old Business

k) New Business

) Professional development

m) Set the next agenda

n) Announce the next Board meeting

o) Adjournment

Section 4.  Special meetings may be called by the Secretary at the direction of the
President, or at the request of three members, for the transaction of business as stated
in the call for the meeting.

Section 5. Proper notification of the media and all persons who have requested
regular notice will be given for all regular, annual and special meetings.

Section 6. A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting shall consist of 3
members of the Board of Directors present in person.

Section7.  Conduct of meetings. Decisions will be by consensus when possible.
Proceedings of meetings will be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order.

ARTICLE V: DISTRICT LIBRARIAN; STAFF

Section 1.  The Board of Directors shall appoint a qualified district librarian who shall
be the executive and administrative officer of the district on behalf of the Board of
Directors, under its review and direction.

Section 2.  The district librarian shall recommend to the Board of Directors the
appointment of and specify the duties of all other staff and shall be responsible for the
proper direction and supervision of the staff.

Section 3.  The district librarian shall be responsible for the care and maintenance of
district property for an adequate and proper selection of library materials, equipment
and supplies in keeping with the stated policy of the Board of Directors, for the
efficiency of services provided, and for financial operation, including co-signing checks,
within the limitations of the budgeted appropriation.

9/13/2022



Section4.  The district librarian shall have interim authority to appoint, without prior
approval of the Board of Directors, a part-time or temporary staff, provided that any such
appointment shall be reported to the Board of Directors at its next regular meeting.

ARTICLE VI: COMMITTEES

Section 1.  The Board of Directors may establish special committees of one or two
members for such specific purposes as the business of the Board of Directors may
require from time to time. The duties of a special committee shall be considered to be
discharged upon completion of the purpose for which it was appointed and after the
final report is made to the Board of Directors.

Section 2.  All special committees shall make a progress report to the Board of
Directors at each of its regular meetings.

Section 3. A budget committee shall be appointed in accordance with ORS 294.336,
and shall serve in the manner so prescribed.

Section4. No committee will have other than advisory powers, unless by suitable
action of the Board of Directors, it is granted specific and limited power to act.

ARTICLE VII: GENERAL

Section 1.  Decisions will be made by consensus when possible. Otherwise, an
affirmative vote of the majority of all members of the Board of Directors present at the
time shall be necessary to approve any action before the Board of Directors. The
President may vote upon and may move or second a proposal before the Board.

Section 2.  The by-laws may be amended by the majority vote of all members of the
Board of Directors, provided written notice of the proposed amendment shall have
been mailed or emailed to all members at least 10 days prior to the meeting at which
such action is proposed to be taken.

Section 3.  Any rule or resolution of the Board of Directors, whether contained in
these by-laws or otherwise, may be suspended temporarily in connection with business
at hand; but such suspension, to be valid, may be taken only at a meeting at which four-
fifths of the members of the Board of Directors shall be present and at least three of
those present shall so approve.

Adopted: November 12, 1989
Corrected: November 26, 1989
Amended: May 15, 1990

9/13/2022



Amended: April 21, 1997
Amended: November 10, 2015
Amended:

9/13/2022






.,

LINCOLN COUNTY

e LIBRARY NSTRICT

Lincoln County Library District

PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL

A. Overview and Purpose of Personnel Policies and Procedures
These policies provide rules and guidelines for all employees of the LINCOLN COUNTY LIBRARY
DISTRICT (which is referred to as “the District” throughout these policies) relative to matters
of personnel administration, except that the District Librarian serves at the pleasure of the
Board of Directors and is the Board of Directors’ representative in relation to the application
and administration of these policies to all other District employees.

These policies are intended to set a general framework for effective personnel administration.
In all cases, these policies should be construed with this in mind and should be understood as
guiding the District Librarian, and not limiting in any way the prerogatives of the Board in its
relationship with the District Librarian. These personnel policies also do not constitute a
contract for employment.

These policies replace and supersede all pre-existing policies, procedures, or orders relating to
personnel matters of the District and its employees, unless contained in a written document
approved by the District Librarian and/or Board of Directors.

B. Introduction
This manual contains statements of personnel policies and procedures. It is designed to
inform all employees of the working guidelines for both supervisory employees and regular
personnel in the daily administration of the District, to provide employees with an
understanding of what is expected of them, and to ensure consistent, fair, and uniform
treatment of District employees.

The District reserves the right to change these policies and procedures at any time, but with
advance notice in most situations

Employees and the District reserve the right to end the employment relationship, with or

without cause, at any time. Further, except as might be approved in writing by the District
Librarian, no employee or representative of the District has the authority to enter into an

September 2022



agreement for employment for any specified period of time, or to make any agreement
contrary to Board-approved policies.

Each employee can assist in keeping the District personnel program up to date by notifying
the District Librarian whenever problems are encountered, or improvements can be made.
When the need for a new or revised policy presents itself, a recommendation should be
submitted by the District Librarian to the Board for consideration.

The District Librarian may vary or modify any District personnel policy, on a case-by-case
basis, if it is found that strict application of the policy is impractical or if it would result in
hardship. Exceptions granted in any instance will not be binding in the future.

Personnel Administration Generally

The Board of Directors and District Librarian shall have authority over all matters of personnel
administration through adoption and implementation of the District budget, pay plans, and
resolutions adopting and/or amending the personnel rules and regulations.

The District Librarian is charged with responsibility for the interpretation and application of
the policies.

The District Librarian may specifically delegate, in writing, the authority for the enforcement
of rules and policies.

The District Librarian shall be responsible for ensuring the effective implementation of these
rules and policies and may further establish, amend, or otherwise modify administrative rules
and policies pursuant to Board policies and shall advise the Board on any changes concerning
these rules and policies. The Board delegates to the District Librarian broad discretion in all
aspects of personnel relations, subject to the advice and concurrence of the Board.

POLICY 8.2: APPOINTMENTS, QUALIFICATIONS AND SEPARATION

A.

Job Announcement

A job announcement will be made for any vacant position within the District and shall be
initiated by the District Librarian (or the Board when the District Librarian position is vacant).
The announcement shall specify the title and salary range of the position, the nature of the
duties performed, qualifications requirements, the time and place to apply, and may include
the election process to be used. Job announcements shall be posted on appropriate District
discussion lists and websites, appropriate media publications including newspapers,
discussion lists, periodical job lines, Facebook pages and other social media. Job
announcements will be posted a minimum of 10 working days prior to the closing date.

Applications
Appointment of positions is through an open competitive process and will be based on merit
and qualification. Promotional appointments may be made exclusively from employees, if it

September 2022



is determined that a sufficient number of employees are interested and qualified to compete
through an internal process. Ordinarily, all vacancies will be posted internally and advertised
externally in order to ensure the hiring of the most qualified candidate.

Applications shall be available in the District’s office and on the District’s website.
Applications will be accepted only for advertised openings. Applicants will complete
information requested as to education, special training, experience, and skills, as well as a
chronological schedule of employment, references, and other pertinent information. The
District Librarian makes all appointments to positions authorized by the Board.

C. Eligibility
At the time of application, all applicants must meet the minimum qualifications for the
position or demonstrate a reasonable assurance of meeting the minimum qualifications by
the time of appointment.

¢ Pre-Employment Drug Screening
Applicants may be required to consent to a pre-employment drug screen if the position of
appointment is deemed to be “safety-sensitive.” A safety sensitive position is defined as
one where the “discharge of duties is fraught with risk of injury to others so that even a
momentary lapse of attention can have disastrous consequences.” This applies to
positions wherein driving is an essential aspect of daily duties. The only current positions
that are affected by this requirement are the courier positions.

The applicant will be advised that the presence of one or more drugs may be cause for
rejection from further consideration for employment, and that appointment to a position
is contingent upon a negative drug test result. The applicant will be asked to authorize
the District to conduct, through the District’s designated physician or laboratory testing
facility, a drug screen test as a requirement of employment.

Applicants shall be directed to an appropriate collection facility. The drug test must be
undertaken as soon after notification as is possible, and no later than 48 hours after
notice to the applicant. Where appropriate, applicants may be reimbursed for reasonable
travel expenses.

Applicants shall be advised of the opportunity to submit medical documentation that may
support a legitimate use for a specific drug and that such information will be reviewed
only by medical consultants to determine whether the individual is lawfully using an
otherwise illegal drug.

The District may decline to extend a final offer of employment to any applicant with a
verified positive test result, and such an applicant may not reapply to the District for a
period of 12 months. The District shall object to the applicant on the basis of failure to
pass the drug screen, a lack of personal characteristics necessary to relate to public
employment, or failure to support the goals of the District. The District shall inform such

September 2022



an applicant that a confirmed presence of an illegal drug in the applicant’s system
precludes the District from hiring the applicant.

D. Orientation
Upon appointment, the District Librarian shall be responsible for the orientation of new
employees. Orientation shall include, but shall not be limited to, the organization and
services of the District, work rules, personnel policies and procedures, safety training,
procedures for the completion of payroll forms, and an introduction to other District
personnel.

E. Probationary Period
New and rehired employees shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months commencing
with their first day of employment. The District can extend the duration of the probationary
period up to six (6) months if, in its sole determination, such an extension is appropriate.
Upon promotion, probation is six (6) months, unless otherwise specified in the position or at
the time of the promotion opportunity.

Probation is part of the selection process used to confirm the initial employment decision and
to reject those whose performance is not satisfactory. During this evaluation period, the
employee and the District will have an opportunity to determine whether further
employment with the District is appropriate.

During the probation period, an employee’s employment may be terminated without
recourse and without appeal under these policies and procedures. An employee who
successfully completes the probationary period will be notified in writing that regular full-time
or a regular part-time status with the District has been achieved.

No employee will be deemed a “regular” and no longer probationary employee until the
District has so determined and notified the employee in writing.

F. Employee Status
e Regular Full-Time Employees
An employee who regularly works a minimum of forty (40) hours a week on a continuing
basis and who has completed the probationary period is considered a regular full-time
employee. Such employees are eligible for full benefits offered by the District, including
health insurance.

e Regular Part-Time Employees
An employee who regularly works less than forty (40) hours a week is considered a regular
part-time employee once the probationary period is successfully completed. The District
shall pay a proportion of vacation, holiday, sick leave benefits for those working 20 or
more hours, based on regular hours of work.

e Temporary Employees

September 2022



Temporary employees are defined as those employees holding jobs of limited duration
arising out of special projects, abnormal workloads, or emergencies. Temporary
employees are ineligible for discretionary employer-paid benefits but receive mandatory
benefits such as Oregon Sick Leave.

G. Duration of Employment
All employees, except temporary employees, are hired for an unspecified duration. The
District may not guarantee employment for any specific length of time. Employment is at the
mutual consent of the employee and the District. Accordingly, either the employee or the
District can end the employment relationship at any time, in accordance with District
procedures. Discipline and discharge may occur subject to the policies set forth in Section 9.0
et seq., except these shall not apply to a probationary employee.

H. Volunteers
Volunteers are not employees of the District. Volunteers receive only those benefits
expressly conferred in writing or by law. Workers’ compensation insurance will not be
provided to volunteers. The service of a volunteer may be discontinued at any time for any
reason. Volunteers must abide by all applicable rules, policies, and practices of the District,
and are held to the same standard of performance as applies to regular employees.
Volunteers serve at the pleasure of the District and the volunteer, and either may end the
volunteer arrangement at any time.

I. Employment of Relatives
Relatives of employees may be hired by the District only if individuals concerned do not work
in direct supervisory relationship or otherwise create a potential conflict of interest that
would interfere with the normal operation of the District. “Close family members” include
current spouse, children, parents, grandparents, brothers, sisters, grandchildren, aunts,
uncles, first cousins, and corresponding in-laws and “step” relations. Present employees
who marry will be permitted to continue working in their current positions, if they do not
work in a direct supervisory relationship with one another or otherwise create a potential
conflict. Employees will be allowed to accept a transfer, including a demotion, to an available
and suitable position to avoid direct supervision by a relative. If this cannot be accomplished,
one of the employees may transferred to another position, if possible, or may be terminated.

J. Driving Record:
Employees who may be required to drive must possess a valid Oregon driver’s license and
must
comply with any operator’s license restriction. All employees who may be required to drive
on District business may at any time have their driving record checked by the District as
permitted by applicable law. If the record indicates violations, the employee may be subject
to appropriate warnings or disciplinary action. As a condition of continued employment, each
employee who operates District vehicles must maintain a personal driving record which is
within risk criteria, if any, established by the District’s insurer.

September 2022



Job applicants’ driving records may be checked prior to being hired, as a condition of
employment, if being hired for a courier position.

Employees who may be required to drive shall notify the District Librarian of any change in
license status and of all traffic violations. Failure to report a traffic violation or change in
license status to the District Librarian is viewed as a violation of District policy. The District
monitors driving records as a component of risk management, in order to identify needs for
driver improvement. This section is applicable to qualified individuals with disabilities only
when driving s an essential function of their job.

K. Layoffs:
Should a reduction in the District work force become necessary, the following procedures
shall apply:

Layoffs may be implemented on a District-wide basis or in one or more departments, work
groups, or job classifications depending on the needs of the District. Once it is determined
what the scope of the layoff will be, employees generally will be laid off in the following
order:

e Temporary and on-call employees;

e Probationary employees;
e Part-time employees; and

e Regular employees, according to knowledge, skills, and abilities as determined by the
District.

In lieu of layoff the District may reduce the hours of work of District personnel. The District
will make available medical and dental insurance as required by COBRA.

L. Voluntary Resignations
To voluntarily resign in good standing, an employee must submit a written letter of
resignation to the District Librarian, allowing at least 10 working days’ advance notice. Failure
to submit a timely written resignation may preclude the individual from future employment
opportunities with the District.

M. Personnel Records
Lincoln County Library District’s philosophy is to safeguard personal employee information in
its possession to ensure the confidentiality of this information. Additionally, the organization
will only collect personal information that is required to pursue its business operations and to
comply with government reporting and disclosure requirements. Personal information
collected by the organization includes employee names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-
mail addresses, emergency contact information, EEO data, social security numbers, date of

September 2022



birth, employment eligibility data, benefit plan enroliment information, which may include
dependents’ personal information, and school/college or certification credentials. All pre-
employment inquiries, including reference check records, as well as former employee files are
maintained in locked, separate areas and are not used by the organization in the course of
business operations.

Personal employee information will be considered confidential and, as such, will be shared
only as required and with those who have a need for access to such information. All hard
copy records will be maintained in locked, secured areas with access limited to those who
have a need for such access. Personal employee information used in business system
applications will be protected under company proprietary electronic transmission and Virtual
Private Network policies and security systems. Participants in the District’s benefit plans
should be aware that personal information will be shared with plan providers as required for
claim handling or record keeping needs.

Organization-assigned information, which may include organizational charts, department
titles and staff charts, job titles, department budgets, company coding and recording systems,
telephone directories, e-mail lists, and company facility or location information and
addresses, is considered by the company to be proprietary company information to be used
for internal purposes only. The District retains the right to communicate and distribute such
information as it feels necessary to conduct library operations.

If an employee becomes aware of a breach in maintaining the confidentiality of any personal
information, the employee should report the incident to Library Director. The Library Director
has the responsibility to investigate the incident and [take or recommend] corrective action.
Please understand that the reasonableness of actions taken in these circumstances will be
taken into consideration. Examples of the release of personal employee information that will
not be considered a breach include the following:

a. Release of partial employee birth dates (i.e., day and month, which is not considered
confidential and will be shared with supervisors/managers who elect to recognize
employees on such dates).

b. Personal telephone numbers or e-mail addresses may be distributed to
supervisors/managers in order to facilitate company work schedules or business
operations.

c. Employee identifier information used in salary or budget planning, review processes,
and for timekeeping purposes will be shared with supervisors/managers.

d. Employees’ company anniversary dates will be distributed to appropriate
supervisors/managers periodically.

e. Employee and dependent information may be distributed in accordance with open
enrollment processes, for periodic benefit plan changes, or for benefit statement
updates.

Should a security breach occur, employees will be notified in writing as soon as possible.

September 2022



e Maintenance of File
Official personnel records of employees shall be maintained by the District Librarian. If
there is a change of name, address, telephone number, marital status, or number of
dependents, the District Librarian should be notified in order to keep applicable records
up to date.

¢ Removal of Records
Documents shall not be removed from a personnel file, except pursuant to a
determination by the District Librarian that a particular document is not accurate or is no
longer relevant or timely to any personnel or performance matter. Any document which
is removed shall be maintained in a separate confidential file containing all such
documents, not indexed under the name of any employee.

o Medical Records
Documents containing medical information shall be kept in a separate, confidential file
that is not part of the employee’s personnel file. While these records shall be treated as
confidential, supervisors and managers may be informed regarding necessary work
restrictions and necessary accommodations. First aid and safety personnel may be
informed, when appropriate, of an employee’s disability, if the disability might require
emergency treatment. Government officials investigating compliance with discrimination
laws shall be provided relevant information on request.

¢ Examination of Personnel Files, General
This policy defines circumstances under which employees may examine their personnel
records; as well as the circumstances under which an individual who is not an employee of
the District may examine an employee’s personnel record. This policy and procedure
applies to all District employees.

1. No material related to corrective action shall be placed in an employee’s file, unless a
copy is given to the employee.

2. Employees may be allowed to include in their personnel file any material deemed
relevant to job qualifications or performance, in the judgement of the District.
Employees may inspect and review their personnel files, excluding confidential reports
from previous employers and all other information gathered prior to the date of hire.

3. Employees may protest, or comment upon in writing, any materials placed in their
personnel file. Such protest/comments shall be placed in the personnel file.

o Procedure for Access by Employee
1. Employees wishing to inspect/review their personnel file shall make an
appointment in advance with the District Librarian.

September 2022



2. An employee must receive a copy of such records within 45 days following

a request. Employees may be charged the actual cost of providing this
service.

o Access to Personnel Files — Persons Other Than an Employee

1. Personnel files are exempt from disclosure under the provisions of ORS

192.502(2), if disclosure would constitute an unreasonable invasion of
privacy. Records of discipline may be exempt from public disclosure.

Any person seeking disclosure of material that would constitute an
unreasonable invasion of an employee’s privacy shall have the burden of
showing that public disclosure would not constitute such an unreasonable
invasion of privacy, by clear and convincing evidence.

In any event, no information in any employee’s personnel file will be
released until the employee is notified and has a reasonable opportunity to
comment on the request, except as required by Oregon law. In all cases,
the District must determine whether or not particular personnel records of
any District employee are subject to public disclosure. An employee’s
expectation of confidentiality and privacy is, in each case, subject to the
requirements of Oregon Public Records Law.

Information regarding an employee’s address, telephone number, work
history, performance, or salary will not be given over the telephone. Only
employment dates and job title may be released verbally.

Verification of confidential employment information requests must be in
writing and signed by the employee, authorizing the release of specific
information.

Work reference requests, for both present and terminated employees,
must be in writing and signed by the employee, authorizing the release of
information, and continuing an effective authorization to disclose and
release liability (as determined by the District) for providing such
information.

¢ Management Review of Personnel Files
Upon the request of an employee, adverse material in the personnel files will be reviewed
by the District Librarian to determine the continued appropriateness of retention.

Materials deemed inappropriate or no longer relevant may be removed from the
personnel file, with the employee concerned so notified. Criteria which may be used
include age of the material, seriousness of the infraction, and instances of repeated or
similar infractions. However, such information may be maintained by the District in a
separate file for purposes of forewarning and litigation defense, but generally not for
human resources determinations.

September 2022



Policy 8.3: PAYROLL, SCHEDULING, AND OVERTIME PRACTICES

A. Work Week and Working Hours
The normal work week is Sunday 12:01 am through midnight Saturday (12:00 am Sunday) and
consists of forty (40) hours, however this should not be considered as a guarantee of any
specific amount of work being made available. The District Librarian and employees are
expected to accomplish service priorities in a timely fashion within the normal work week to
the greatest extent possible. The hours of employment shall be fixed by the District Librarian.

B. Wage Compensation

e Wage Policy
The District maintains a pay plan covering all positions in the District, showing the
minimum and maximum rates of pay. In arriving at such salary ranges, consideration is
given to market rates of pay for comparable work in other public and private
employment, including consideration of conditions of work and basic pay, current costs of
living, the local economy and wage adjustments in the community, suggestions of the
District Librarian, and the District’s financial situation.

e Salary Review
Compensation will be reviewed by the District Librarian at the end of an employee’s

probation. An increase may be recommended based upon competent and commendable
service.

Regular employees’ salaries will be reviewed during the budget process for the coming
fiscal year. Wage increases are not automatic. The District Librarian makes salary
recommendations to the Board of Directors. For exceptional performance, the District
Librarian may recommend a merit increase to any employee paid below the top of the
range, and if granted, it may be reduced to the step appropriate at any time extraordinary
performance ceases.

C. Overtime

An employee may work more than forty (40) hours per week, if needed by the District. Only
the District Librarian may authorize overtime, except in an emergency.

D. Non-Exempt Employees

An employee who is paid an hourly wage and whose job generally calls for the payment of
minimum wage and overtime as specified under state or federal regulations.

E. Exempt Employees
Employees exempt from wage and hour regulations (Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state
law) are expected to dedicate the appropriate time and effort to properly discharge the
duties of their positions, including the expenditure of additional hours, which may be required
from time to time. Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime or compensatory time.

10
September 2022



F. Rest Periods
Employees may take a paid 15-minute rest period during each half shift, scheduled at or as
near as feasible to the middle of each half shift. Consistent with operating requirements,
employees who work, at the request of the District, two (2) or more hours beyond their
regular quitting time shall receive a 15-minute rest period before starting on the next shift, in
addition to the regular rest periods occurring during the shift. Each rest period shall not
exceed 15 minutes total. Rest periods shall not interfere with or be detrimental to public
safety.

G. Meal Periods
Employees shall be granted an unpaid meal period not to exceed one (1) hour during each
work shift. Consistent with operating requirements and applicable law, meal periods shall be
scheduled at or about the middle of the work shift. Employees who have their meal period
interrupted by the District to perform required work shall be compensated for their meal
period as time worked.

H. Payday
Pay periods are monthly. Employees are paid the 3™ day of the month following the pay
period. In the event of an emergency, employees may be permitted a draw at another time,
upon a written request being placed with the District Librarian.

. Payroll Deductions
e Required Deductions
Federal and state laws require the following deductions from every paycheck:

Federal Withholding Tax;

State Withholding Tax;

Social Security Taxes (FICA);

Court Ordered Child Support Payments or Garnishments; and
Retirement/Deferred Compensation.

Oregon State Transportation Tax

A

e Deferred Compensation
Any full-time District employee may elect to enroll in a deferred compensation plan
offered by the District. Deferred compensation accounts will be established on behalf of a
full-time employee who is willing to make contributions to the plan in accordance with
plan requirements.

An enrolled full-time employee will automatically have an amount equivalent to 6% of pay
placed into the deferred compensation plan as an employee benefit.

Eligible employees may also choose to have additional monies placed in their deferred
compensation accounts above the District-provided employee benefit amounts through
elected pre-tax payroll deductions.

11
September 2022



J. Maedical and Life Insurance
The District provides group medical, dental, vision, long term disability, and life insurance for
eligible employees working 30 hours per week or more. Coverage begins the first of the next
month following the date of employment. Information regarding eligibility and specific
benefits is available from the District Librarian.

K. Time Records
Time sheets must serve as an accurate record of the time for which each employee is paid
wages and overtime. Each employee is expected to accurately record the time spent working
on District business. Personal time spent in District offices outside of regular working hours
should not be recorded.

An employee of the District may volunteer service to the District, and the time involved would
not be recorded, ONLY IF the volunteer hours worked DO NOT INVOLVE THE SAME TYPE OF
SERVICE which the person is employed to perform for the District. All District volunteer
activities by employees must be approved in advance, and in writing.

L. Pay Upon Separation
A regular employee terminating employment with the District will be paid any earned and
unpaid wages then due for work hours, earned vacation which the employee is eligible to take
off, and compensatory time, which shall be paid at the employee’s hourly rate (hereafter “pay
upon separation”). An employee who is involuntarily terminated will be paid no later than
the end of the first business day after a discharge or termination. If an employee resigns and
fails to give at least 48 hours’ advance notice prior to quitting District employment, pay upon
separation shall be paid within five (5) days of termination or on the next payday, whichever
is sooner, excluding weekends and holidays. Those employees who resign and do provide at
least 48 hours’ notice shall be paid on the last day worked.

Policy 8.4: EMPLOYEE TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION AND REIMBURSEMENT

A. General Expectations
All employees or representatives of the District are expected to use good judgement
regarding the expenditure of funds for travel expenses.

B. Documentation Objectives
The Procedures for documenting the expenses involved with employee travel on District
related business activities are designed to provide public accountability in two areas:

e Pre-approval of all travel requests to ensure that the travel is appropriate to the needs of
the District and that budgeted funds are available for specific travel requests; and

e A complete accounting of the actual expenses for the travel to ensure that the expenses
reported for reimbursement are appropriate and are substantiated by appropriate
documentation.

12
September 2022



C. Approval
The District Librarian shall authorize registration, travel, and attendance expenditures, in
advance, within the budgeted amounts adopted by the Board.

D. Travel Settlement
Within one (1) week after the travel has been completed, the employee must turn in receipts
for lodging and all other expenses to be paid on an actual basis.

Guidelines:
The following general guidelines apply to the reimbursement of employee travel expenses:

e Transportation
The actual cost of transportation, taxi fares, telephone calls, and similar items incidental
and necessary to the performance of official business while on travel status will be paid. If
the employee’s personal vehicle is used, the District will reimburse the employee at the
current IRS mileage rate for the actual mileage required for the trip. Parking and other
related expenses must be documented by receipt.

e Lodging
The District shall provide lodging expenses based upon federal per diem rates.

e Meals
Meal and rest periods will be provided according to any applicable state regulations.
Supervisors will review these and establish schedules. Non-exempt employees are not
permitted to work through a meal period unless approval from a supervisor (in an
emergency situation) is obtained before the scheduled meal break. In these situations,
the meal period will be paid time.
The District shall provide meal expenses based upon Federal per diem rates.

e Telephone and Internet
Expenses for telephone and internet services are reimbursable only if they are directly
related to District business and are supported by actual receipts. Personal telephone and
internet services charged to the District or to your room and paid by the District must be
reimbursed.

e Registration and Tuition Fees
Expenses for conference registration, conference meals, activities, and tuition fees are
allowable expenses. A copy of the registration must be attached to the Request for
Expenses form.

e Accompanied Travel
Expenses for family members who accompany the employee on a trip are not
reimbursable.

13
September 2022



e Alcoholic Beverages
An expenditure for alcoholic beverages may not be reimbursed by the District and
reimbursement will be required, if any are charged to the District.

Policy 8.5: TIME OFF

A. Vacation Benefits
Vacation benefits are intended to provide eligible employees with a period of paid rest and
relaxation away from work. Accordingly, employees are encouraged to schedule vacations
each year and to use all earned vacation benefits.

If a holiday falls during an employee’s scheduled vacation, the employee will receive holiday
pay for the day, if eligible for such pay, and will not be charged for vacation benefits for the
day.

Accrued and unused vacation benefits shall be paid upon termination of employment.
Vacation credits shall not accrue during any unpaid leave of absence.

The District provides vacation benefits to its regular part-time (pro-rated) and full-time
employees. Vacation credits will be posted with each paycheck (monthly).

Years of Continuous Service Days of Vacation Leave Monthly Accrual
0 through 2 years 12 days 8 hours
3 through 4 years 14 days 9.33 hours
5 through 9 years 19 days 12.67 hours
10 through 14 years 21 days 14 hours
15 through 19 years 23 days 15.33 hours
20 or more years 25 days 16.67 hours

Time is not to be banked and never used; therefore, accrual cannot exceed 200 hours.
Vacation benefits will stop accruing when the maximum allowed has been reached. The
benefit will begin accruing again when the total is reduced to less than the allowed maximum.

Vacations must be scheduled and approved by the District Librarian or by a designated
supervisor, in advance.

B. Holidays
Regular full-time employees will receive a day off with pay on each of these recognized
holidays:
New Year’s Day
Presidents’ Day
Martin Luther King Jr.’s Day
Juneteenth
Memorial Day

14
September 2022



Fourth of July

Labor Day

Veteran’s Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas or Hanukkah
One floating holiday

Employees shall earn one (1) floating holiday per year, which shall be scheduled and taken off
during the year in which the holiday is earned. Floating holidays may not be carried forward
into the succeeding fiscal year, unless approved in advance by the District Librarian.

Part-time employees receive pro-rated holiday benefits.

When a scheduled holiday falls on Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.
When a scheduled holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the Saturday if Saturday
is a regular working day (Siletz Library) or on the preceding Friday if the Saturday is a non-
working day (LCLD office).

Employees who are off work on an unpaid leave of absence shall not receive holiday pay.
Employees who are off work due to sickness or vacation shall be paid for the holiday in lieu of
using vacation or sick leave vacation or sick leave credits.

C. Sick Leave
Paid sick leave benefits provide eligible employees with a period of paid rest and recuperation
when they or an eligible family member are ill, injured, or have a health condition, including
the medical diagnosis, for preventive care, to care for an infant or adopted child or foster
child under 18, for bereavement, in certain situations related to a public health emergency,
and for any other qualifying reason under Oregon Sick Time. Sick leave can be used in 15-
minute increments or larger periods of time.

e Notification of Inability to Work
Employees are expected to be able to attend work reliably, predictably and regularly.
Employees who are unable to report to work due to personal or dependent illness or
injury must contact their immediate supervisor on or before scheduled starting time,
except in limited situations where such notice is not be practical. Up to 10 days’ notice is
requested, when the need for sick leave is known in advance. If an employee becomes
sick during the day, the employee’s supervisor or designee must be notified before the
employee leaves work.

e Accrual
In order to minimize the economic hardships that may result from an unexpected short-
term personal or dependent iliness or injury, the District provides regular full-time
employees with eight (8) hours of accumulated sick leave per month. Part-time and
Temporary employees will receive a prorated amount based upon their work schedule,
which is at least compliant with applicable law. Unused sick leave benefits accumulate

15
September 2022



from year to year. Employees are not paid for unused sick leave upon employment
termination.

e Transfer of Sick Leave
Employees who have exhausted their sick and vacation leave benefits may receive a gift of
sick leave from other District employees, if they require extended time off for illness or
injury. In such events, the District’s only involvement shall be to transfer an employee’s
sick leave credit in accordance with the employee’s request and add it to the sick leave
balance of another employee. Employees may donate up to 10% of their accrued sick
leave balance. Only employees who have accumulated more than 120 hours may make a
contribution, and no employee may contribute more than 40 hours per year to other
employees.

D. Bereavement Leave
A leave of absence with pay for up to five (5) days may be granted an employee when a death
in the employee’s immediate family requires the absence of an employee. Should
circumstances require an employee to be absent longer than the five (5) days, the days in
excess may be charged against accumulated sick leave.

“Immediate family” is defined as a member of an employee’s household, dependent of the
employee, brother, sister, grandparents, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-
in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, grandchildren, and parent of the employee or the
employee’s spouse or domestic partner.

E. Jury Duty
Employees subpoenaed to serve as witnesses or for jury duty may obtain a protected leave of
absence. If we feel that your absence for jury service would cause an undue hardship to you
or the organization, we may instead request, with your agreement, that jury duty be
postponed. You may choose to use accrued paid time (vacation, compensatory, floating
holiday hours) available for voluntary service as a witness or for court appearances you must
make as part of your own legal proceedings or lawsuit.

Length of Leave
Jury or witness duty leave is available for the period of time covered by the initial subpoena
or court order and any involuntary extensions.

Request Procedure

You must notify your manager or supervisor as soon as is practicable after you receive notice

asking you to serve as a witness or on a jury so that arrangements can be made to cover your
position. You are expected to provide us with a copy of the subpoena or notice within five (5)
days after you receive it.

Pay While on Leave
Non-exempt employees will be compensated for the difference between the civic pay
received and the regular rate of pay for up to two (2) weeks, after that period, paid leave may

16
September 2022



be utilized, if desired. For exempt employees, any partial day or partial week worked will be
paid in full; such employees should remit any jury fees paid in connection with their service to
the District.

F. Pregnancy-related Accommodations
Reasonable accommodations are available to pregnant employees, to include the acquisition
or modification of equipment or devices, more frequent or longer break periods or periodic
rest, assistance with manual labor, and modification of work schedules or job assignments.

An employee affected by pregnancy, childbirth or a related medical condition or occurrence
may request a temporary transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position for the duration
of the pregnancy, if such a transfer is reasonably necessary and can reasonably be
accommodated and a position is available.

Expectant employees are encouraged to work as long as the job is performed satisfactorily,
work is attended regularly, and they are physically able to perform the job. Leave should be
taken when advised by a medical professional and should be coordinated with the District
Librarian. The portion of leave during which the employee is unable to work for physical
reasons will be covered under the District’s standard employee sick pay or disability pay
programs. Additional unpaid personal leave, up to three (3) months, may be arranged with
the District Librarian’s approval, where work circumstances permit.

Disability or illness caused by pregnancy will be treated the same as any other temporary
physical condition requiring time off from work. An employee taking pregnancy leave will be
returned to work without loss of seniority or other service credits accrued on the date the
leave commences. If the employee’s job is no longer available when the employee seeks
reinstatement, the District Librarian will reinstate the employee to any other position which is
available and suitable.

All requests for transfer or leave must be in writing and made as soon as practicable after the
necessity of either the leave or transfer becomes known to the employee. Written
verification may be required from the employee’s medical provider to substantiate the need
for a transfer or leave under this policy.

G. Uniformed Services Leave and Reemployment
Upon application, the District will grant a leave of absence to employees called to military
service by the United States government or the State of Oregon who must temporarily leave
employment with the District, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, to perform military duty.
Such employees will be accorded all rights to which they are entitled under Oregon and
federal law.

An employee who has been employed by the District for at least six (6} months and who is a
member of the National Guard, National Guard Reserve or of any reserve component of the
Armed Forces of the United States or of the United States Public Health Service is entitled to a
paid leave of absence for initial active-duty training or annual active duty for training per

17
September 2022



military training year not to exceed fifteen (15) calendar days. Any subsequent leave of
absence during the military training year (October 1 through September 30) will be unpaid.

Except as provided for above, the District will not provide wages or other monetary
compensation during an employee’s military leave of absence. At the employee’s discretion,
the employee may use accrued vacation, personal holidays, or compensatory time during the
absence. The employee may elect to continue health care coverage during the absence and
may be subject to paying the full costs of such coverage.

H. Domestic Violence Victim Leave
Any employee who is a victim of or at risk of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault, or
stalking is covered by the law, regardless of how long the employee has worked for the
District and regardless of how many hours per week the employee works.

An employee who is a victim may request a reasonable safety accommodation to allow the
employee to safely continue to work. For instance, a safety accommodation might be a
transfer, reassignment, modified schedule, unpaid leave from employment, changed work
telephone number, changed work-station, installed lock, change in office policy, or any other
adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility, or work requirement in response to actual
or threatened domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault, or stalking.

The District will grant a request for a reasonable safety accommodation, unless it imposes an
“undue hardship.” Verification of the need for leave or accommodation may be requested;
the District will treat all information received as confidential.

A summary of the statues and administrative rules that govern the protected leave will be
posted in a conspicuous and accessible place.

. Unpaid Leave for Crime Victims
Districts that employ six (6) or more individuals must allow eligible employees to use unpaid
leave to attend criminal proceedings, unless such leave imposes an undue hardship. A “crime
victim” is defined as an individual who has suffered financial, social, psychological, or physical
harm as a result of a person felony and includes a member of an employee’s immediate
family. Reasonable safety accommodations shall also be made for the employee, as
requested. All documentation received in request with this leave will be kept confidential.

J. Unpaid Leave of Absence
e General

Employees who have been continuously employed with the District for at least one (1)
year may request a personal leave of absence, without pay, for a reasonable period of
time up to sixty (60) days. Requests for leaves of absences will be considered on the basis
of the employee’s length of service, performance, responsibility level, the reason for the
request, whether other individuals are already out on leave, and the expected impact of
the leave on the employer.

18
September 2022



Requests
Requests must be submitted in writing and must be approved, in writing, by the District
Librarian before the leave begins.

Requests for an extension of leave must be submitted, in writing, and approved, in
writing, by the District Librarian before the extended period of leave begins. Itis the
employee’s responsibility to report to work at the end of the approved leave. An
employee who fails to report to work on the day after the leave period expires will
generally be considered to have voluntarily resigned.

Status of Employee Benefits During Personal Leave

The District will not pay for group health or dental insurance premiums during any portion
of an unpaid leave of absence. Accordingly, the premiums for such coverage are the
complete responsibility of the employee. In order to keep the insurance in force,
premiums for the entire period of the leave must be paid before the employee begins the
leave. Vacation time and sick leave will not accrue during a personal leave of absence.

Policy 8.6: SAFETY AND ACCIDENTS

A. Safety Policy Statement
Nothing is of greater concern to the District than the safety of its employees and the public.

For

the employee's protection, job-related injuries or illnesses must be reported immediately in
accordance with the District's safety and accident policy. Employees are expected to use
common sense and good judgment in work habits, to follow safe work practices, and to bring
any unsafe condition to the attention of a supervisor.

For example, employees shall:

1.
2.

w

5.
6.

Use the safety equipment that has been provided for use;

Not operate a vehicle while prescribed medication, other drugs, or alcohol are present in
the body without a doctor's written approval;

Perform job duties requiring physical exertion in the manner so trained;

Warn co-workers and management of unsafe conditions or practices. Accept with
appreciation the warning of a co-worker or supervisors as an expression of concern for
their own well-being;

Report dangerous or unsafe conditions observed at work; and

Refrain from horseplay at all times.

B. Unsafe Conditions

Employee Responsibility

Every employee is responsible for safety as a specific job assignment. To achieve the
District goal of providing a safe workplace, everyone must be aware of safety at all times.
Employees shall immediately report any unsafe or hazardous condition directly to the

19

September 2022



District Librarian, if it cannot be corrected safely and independently. Every effort will be
made to remedy safety problems as quickly as possible.

Management Responsibility

The District will establish and administer a safety committee or hold safety meetings. The
District Librarian and/or safety officer shall frequently review the need for implementing
safety practices, policy, or procedures warranted by hazards. Each accident or "near miss"
is cause for review. A copy of such policies shall be delivered to all employees.
Department heads will periodically involve employees in the process. The need for
periodic training shall be considered and arranged, as determined by the District Librarian.

Managing Unsafe Conditions
It is every employee's responsibility to observe and identify conditions which could pose a
hazard to employees or to the general public.

After identifying the problem, employees at the scene are expected to:

Safely eliminate the hazard, and obtain necessary assistance;
Safely control the hazard by enclosure or guard;

Employ avoidance procedures; and

Use personal protective equipment as appropriate.

LN PE

C. Accident Reporting
Accidents involving work performed for the District must be reported in detail as soon after
the occurrence as possible. All accident reports should be submitted to the District Librarian.

Vehicular Accidents

Accidents involving other District owned vehicles or personal vehicles being operated on
District business must also be reported to a police agency for investigation. Any accident
resulting in personal injuries or death must be reported immediately to the District office.

Other Accidents

Accidents involving damage to equipment or property, or personal injury, must also be
reported to the District Librarian. The District Librarian will determine the need for further
investigation.

In case of an accident involving personal injury to an employee, regardless of how serious,
a supervisor and the District Librarian should be notified as soon as possible. Failure to
report accidents can result in a violation of conditions of insurance coverage and state
laws, leading to difficulties in processing insurance and benefit claims. Injured workers
are encouraged to fill out a Workers’ Compensation Report form and submit it as soon as
possible to the District Librarian. If a worker does not wish to file a claim, an
Accident/Injury report form can be submitted instead. All injuries must be reportedin a
timely manner to avoid risk of claim denial. The District Librarian will provide advice and
assistance to any person filling out a Workers' Compensation Report.

20

September 2022



The appropriate entries shall be made in the OSHA 300 Report log.

D. Workers’ Compensation Insurance
If an employee is injured on the job, in most cases the injured worker will be entitled to
benefits under the state workers' compensation law. The District carries workers'
compensation coverage and will assist employees in obtaining all benefits to which they are
legally entitled.

E. Return-to-Work Policy
The following procedures must be followed by employees who wish to return to work
following an on-the-job injury which has resulted in the employee’s being off work.

e All requests to return to work must be made in writing, dated, and signed by you.

e All requests to return to work must be accompanied by a dated, written release signed by
your attending physician. This release must clearly specify whether you are released for
your former job or are restricted in any way.

e Requests to return to work must be made no later than the seventh (7th) calendar day
following the date an employee is notified by the insurer, via certified mail, of the
attending physician releasing the worker for employment. Except where, in our opinion,
extenuating circumstances exist, failure to make a timely request terminates your right to
reemployment. Failure to seek a written release upon your becoming able to return to
work may constitute abandonment of your right to reemployment.

* Requests to return to work may be brought in personally or mailed to the District. If
mailed, the request should be directed to the person listed below. Requests brought in
personally will be deemed made the date on which the written request is given to the
District. Mailed requests will be deemed made on the date of receipt. All requests will be
date stamped upon receipt.

e All requests to return to work must be directed to the District Librarian.

e |f a suitable job is not available at the time of request, an employee may contact the
District Librarian in person or by telephone once a week to renew the request. If a period
of 10 days elapses without such a contact, you will be considered to have abandoned your
right to be returned to work.

* All job offers will be made by telephone. It is your obligation to keep the District advised
of any changes in your telephone number.

o If offered a suitable position in response to a request to return to work and an employee
refuses to accept it, the employee will be considered to have voluntarily terminated
employment and abandoned any right to reemployment.

21
September 2022



F. Violence in the Workplace
The District is absolutely committed to providing a workplace which is free of harassment,
threats, intimidation, and violent acts. Each of the District’s employees is entitled to come to
work without fear of being the target of such actions.

The District has a zero-tolerance policy in this area. Such acts will not be permitted to occur.
This prohibition includes verbal or physical harassment, verbal or physical threats, any
menacing behavior, any actual aggressive or angry touching of a co-worker, verbal
confrontations, name- calling or profanity directed against anyone personally, explosions of
anger, and any other actions that cause others to feel unsafe, harassed, or threatened. This
policy is in addition to our harassment policy.

For purposes of this policy, violent behavior is defined as:

e The actual or implied threat of harm to an individual, group of individuals, or associates of
those individuals.

e The possession on District property of weapons of any kind, unless specifically authorized
by District management, or the brandishing of any object that could reasonably be
construed as a weapon. Weapons include, but are not limited to, guns, knives, explosives,
tear gas, and mace. District property includes parking lots. Weapons are not permitted in
cars parked in District lots, and this includes rifles during hunting season.

e Loud, angry, or disruptive behavior (“temper tantrums”). Such outbursts are clearly not an
acceptable part of the District’s work environment.

e Negligent or intentional disregard for the physical safety or well-being of others.
¢  Willful destruction of District or other employee property.
e Commission of any violent crime on District property.

¢ Any other conduct that a reasonable person would perceive as constituting actual or
threatened violence.

Anyone engaging in any acts of harassment, threats, intimidation, or violence against a fellow
employee will be subject to discipline, up to and including immediate termination.

Any employee who is subjected to, witnesses, or has knowledge of actions that could be
perceived as harassment, threats, intimidation, or violence, or has reason to believe that such
actions may occur, is encouraged and required to report them immediately to the District
Librarian. Employees may raise concerns and make reports without fear of reprisal. Such
communications will be kept confidential to the full extent possible under the circumstances.

22
September 2022



The District reserves the right to inspect, with or without notice, all District property, and any
other property, whether belonging to employees, patrons, clients, etc., brought onto the
District’s premises, including, but not limited to packages, bags, briefcases, backpacks, purses,
automobiles, etc. The District also reserves the right to conduct ongoing background checks
on employees in compliance with applicable law and to remove any individuals from the
District’s premises that present safety risks to others.

Policy 8.7: WHAT THE DISTRICT EXPECTS FROM YOU

A. Teamwork and Excellence
This section has been arranged to present a general overview of some of the District's
expectations of its employees. Every employee should keep in mind that each is a part of a
team of public employees and public satisfaction with the District depends upon good service.

B. Personal Conduct
Positive attitude, proper courtesy, and conduct on and off the job are important to the
individual as well as to the District. Neatness of work performed is also important. All
employees are engaged in public relations. Some deal directly with the public; others, while
not in direct personal contact, do perform work under the public eye. Employees of the
District, regardless of whether contacts are direct or indirect, are expected to be courteous,
efficient, and helpful in all their work assignments. Favorable impressions created by
employees' public behavior help develop good will and support for District services.

C. Confidentiality of Patron and Employee Information
At Lincoln County Library District, employees have access to confidential information,
including information about patrons and other employees. The District’s patrons trust us with
their personal information and disclosing this information without authorization would have a
materially adverse impact on our integrity and on our relationships with our patrons.
Additionally, some District staff have access to personnel information through the course of
their duties. Employees must not disclose any information pertaining to patrons or staff
without prior explicit approval of their supervisor or the District Librarian and must sign a
form stating such.

No organization-owned records or information, including documents, files, records, computer
files, and similar materials may be removed from our premises without permission from
Lincoln County Library District, except in the ordinary course of performing duties on behalf of
Lincoln County Library District. Additionally, the contents of the District’s records or
information otherwise obtained in regard to its operations may not be disclosed to anyone
except when authorized. This prohibition also applies to items posted in a blog or website.
Employees are subject to appropriate corrective action, up to and including termination, for
revealing confidential patron or employee information.

D. Code of Ethics for District Employees

23
September 2022



e Personal Interests Avoided
District employees may not use District time for personal interest or gain. Employees may
use services and equipment in the same way a member of the public would use services
and equipment. When giving testimony unrelated to their assigned District
responsibilities, District employees shall not use information or facts that have come to
them by virtue of their employment for personal gain or benefit. In matters of personal
interest, employees should conduct themselves so as not to impair their working
relationship with other employees, officials, or the public.

e Gifts and Gratuities
Employees shall not accept any special favors, gifts, or gratuities resulting from or related
to employment with the District. In this regard, the appearance of impropriety can be as
damaging as actual impropriety and shall be avoided.

e Special Gifts
Department heads or the District Librarian may allow acceptance of non-monetary gifts of
nominal value, under $50, at holidays or special occasions which are available to be
shared by all employees.

E. Political Activities for District Employees
e Official Position Campaigning
Employees may not use their official authority or position with the District to further the
cause of any political party or candidate for nomination or election to any political office.

e  On-Duty Activity
Oregon law forbids any District employee, while on the job, from soliciting money,
influence, service, or other article of value or otherwise aiding and/or promoting any
political cause, or the nomination or election of any person for public office.

F. Attendance and Punctuality
Each employee and the employee's performance on the job are important to the overall
success of operations. When absent, someone else must do the job. Everyone is expected to
keep regular attendance, be on time, and work as scheduled.

In accepting employment with the District, each employee is required to meet certain
standards. Maintaining an acceptable level of job attendance is part of good work
performance and is one of the standards by which an employee's overall contribution to the
District may be measured. Continued employment carries with it the personal responsibility
of each employee to be on the job and on time every scheduled workday. Recurring and
excessive absences and/or tardiness are disruptive to work schedules, costly to the District
and its residents, and detrimental to the morale and efforts of employees who maintain a
good workrecord.

Except when the absence is due to leave protected by state or federal law, failure to meet
these requirements subjects an employee to disciplinary action, which includes

24
September 2022



termination. The ability to attend work regularly is an essential job requirement.

e Job Abandonment
To maintain a safe and productive work environment, employees are expected to be
reliable in reporting for scheduled work. Absenteeism and tardiness place a burden on
other employees and on the organization; poor attendance and excessive tardiness are
disruptive. Either may lead to corrective action, up to and including termination of
employment. If an employee fails to call in or show up for work, job abandonment and
voluntary resignation will be assumed after the third day of absence.

G. Personal Appearance
Each employee, while on the job, is responsible to present a proper, businesslike appearance
whether in the office, a District vehicle, or other site. Good taste and good judgment in
personal attire is expected. All articles of clothing shall be neat and clean and in good repair.

H. Maintaining Work Areas
The District's objective is to provide and maintain clean, safe, and healthy work conditions. It
is the responsibility of each employee to maintain a safe, neat work area and ensure that all
working documents, desks, cabinets, and equipment are secure at the close of the work shift.

I. Personal Telephone Calls
District phones are to be used for District purposes. Telephone calls of a personal nature
(incoming or outgoing) should be kept to a minimum and made during breaks or lunch
periods whenever possible.

J. Smoking
State law prohibits smoking in the workplace buildings (includes tobacco and electronic
smoking devices) and it is only allowed in designated smoking areas on District property.
There are no designated smoking areas at the Siletz Public Library; no smoking is allowed on
the grounds of the Siletz Public Library. Smoking at the LCLD offices must occur at least 10
feet away from all doorways in the complex.

K. Outside Employment

e Incompatible Work
Employees shall not engage in outside employment that conflicts, in any way, with District
employment detracts from the efficiency of work performance or is in conflict with the
interests of the District. The District expects employees to avoid extra work which affects
endurance, overall personal health, or effectiveness. The District will hold all employees
to the same standards of performance and scheduling demands, including employees who
hold outside jobs.

e Notification
Employees shall notify the District Librarian, in writing and in advance, of all employment
outside the scope of their employment with the District.

25
September 2022



e Conflicts
The District Librarian will notify the employee any time outside employment is found to
be in conflict with the interests of the District or is likely to bring discredit upon the
District. It shall be up to the employee to choose which employment option is most
desired.

L. Communications and Software Policy

The following describes the District’s policy on the use and monitoring of its electronic
communication/ information systems, including computers, email, Internet access, voicemail,
facsimiles, and copy machines.

All electronic equipment and all communications and stored information transmitted,
received, or contained in the District's electronic communication/information systems are
the property of the District and, as such, are to be used mostly for job-related purposes. The
use of the District's electronic communication/information systems for non-job-related
purposes is acceptable, if it is on the same basis as library patrons, however employees
should not have any expectation of privacy when using these systems or any related
equipment. The District specifically reserves the right to access, review, monitor, and disclose
all matters received, disseminated or stored on its systems (including deleted material) at any
time and for any reason, and may do so with or without notice.

Employees who use these systems for any non-job-related purposes do so at their own risk.
The District may decide reasonable use in its sole discretion. Employees are strictly
prohibited from using any of the District's electronic communication systems to send
messages which may be interpreted as harassing, discriminatory, obscene, derogatory or
defamatory. The District’s anti-harassment and anti-discrimination policy fully applies to
employees in their use of the District’s electronic communication systems.

To prevent computer viruses from being transmitted through the District’s Internet system,
there will be no unauthorized downloading of software. Furthermore, employees should not
upload or download information, data, or software which is copyrighted by a third-party.

All passwords and codes are the property of the District and do not guarantee any privacy to
the employee. Password protection does not prevent access by the District. Employees shall
not use a code, access a file, or retrieve any stored communication, other than where
authorized, unless there has been prior clearance by an authorized supervisor. Information
in District computers and equipment that is confidential and/or proprietary information
cannot be shared with individuals outside of the District without prior clearance from an
authorized supervisor.

The use of encryption devices or software that has not been authorized by the District is
prohibited.

Any employee terminating employment with the District is prohibited from taking (in any
form) or copying any computer discs, hard copies, or other information stored on the

26

September 2022



District's electronic equipment.

To ensure that the use of the District's electronic communication systems is consistent with
the District's legitimate business interests and to assure compliance with the District’s policy,
the District specifically reserves the right to access, review, monitor and disclose all
components of these systems (including deleted material), at any time, and will do so with
and without notice.

Employees who violate this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment. Action or inaction by the District in response to prior
violation(s)of this policy does not constitute a waiver of the District’s right to take
appropriate action for any subsequent violation. All violations of this policy should be
reported to the District Librarian.

M. Drugs and Alcohol
e Statement of Concerns

1. The District has a responsibility pursuant to the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 to
its employees and to the public to ensure safe working conditions for its employees
and a productive workforce unimpaired by chemical substance abuse. To satisfy
these responsibilities and OSHA requirements, the District must preserve a work
environment free from the effects of drugs, alcohol, or other performance-
impairing substances.

2. The misuse of alcohol and other drugs can impair employee performance, as well
as physical and mental health, and may jeopardize employee safety as well as the
safety of the public.

e Policy
1. The District is committed to maintaining a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees by assisting employees to overcome drug or alcohol related problems
through appropriate treatment and, if necessary, disciplinaryaction.

2. A candidate and or employee may be asked to submit to pre-employment, random
controlled substance testing, reasonable suspicion testing, and post-accident
discovery testing to confirm that they are drug or alcohol free. Testing includes a
urinalysis or blood serum, or both. An employee who is returning to safety-
sensitive functions after engaging in conduct prohibited by this policy may also be
required to undergo a return-to-duty test.

3. Employees shall not report to work under the influence of intoxicating liquor or
illegal drugs.

4. The use, sale, possession, manufacture, distribution, and/or dispensing by an
employee of an intoxicating liquor, controlled or illegal substance, or a drug not
medically authorized, or any other substances which impair job performance, or pose
a hazard to the safety and welfare of the employee, other employees or the public, is

27
September 2022



strictly prohibited. The use of alcohol or medically prescribed controiled substances
off-duty is not controlled by this policy. Conduct in violation of this policy may resuit
in disciplinary action and/or criminal investigation, if appropriate.

5. Laboratory tests relied upon shall be highlyaccurate and reliable.

6. Positive test results may only be disclosed to the employee, the appropriate EAP
administrator, the appropriate management officials necessary to process an
adverse action against the employee, or a court of law or administrative tribunal
in anyadverse personnel action.

7. All medical and rehabilitation records in an EAP will be deemed confidential "patient"
records and may not be disclosed without the prior written consent of the patient,
authorizing court order, or otherwise as permitted by federal law implemented at 42
CFR Part 2.

8. This policy will be enforced and administered in a manner which is consistent with
the value statements set forth in this section, and with the advice and concurrence
of the District's legal counsel.

9. Permitted Use
It is the employee’s responsibility to determine from a physician whether or not a
prescribed drug can impair job performance. An employee in a safety-sensitive role
whose impairment may affect job performance should request an accommodation,
take sick leave, or take other steps consistent with advice of a physician. If an
employee in a safety-sensitive role reports to work under the influence of
prescription medication, the employee may be disciplined. Any failure to report the
use of such drugs or other substances following an event of concern to the District, or
failure to provide evidence of medical authorization, can result in disciplinary action.

10. Reports of Drug Conviction
Each employee must report facts and circumstances to the District Librarian no later
than five (5) days after conviction for violating any criminal drug statute.

11. Employee Education
The District will afford employees an opportunity to deal with drug and alcohol
related problems. The District Librarian maintains information relating to the
hazards of and treatment for drug and alcohol related problems. Proactive training
and information shall be sponsored by the District periodically. Any District
employee may seek advice, information, and assistance voluntarily. Medical
confidentiality will be maintained, consistent with thispolicy.

12. Employee Assistance
Any employee who voluntarily requests assistance in dealing with a personal drug
and/or alcohol problem may do so through a private treatment program for drug

28
September 2022



and alcohol problems. The District Librarian will assist employees who wish to
identify and selectan appropriate treatment program.

After such accommodation, the discontinuation of any involvement with alcohol or
drugs may be an essential requisite for employment and is consistent with the
District's policy of maintaining a drug free workplace.

13. Discipline Related to Drug or Alcohol Abuse
An employee may be considered to have used illegal drugs or alcohol on the basis of
any appropriate evidence including, but not limited to:

a. Direct observation;

b. Evidence obtained from an arrest or criminal conviction;
c. Averified positive test result; or

d. An employee's voluntaryadmission.

In such a case, the employee may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including immediate dismissal. As part of the disciplinary action arising from current
use of illegal

drugs or a job-related alcohol problem, an employee may be directed to consult with
health care providers. Such an employee may be required to participate in a drug or
alcohol treatment program as a condition of continued employment.

A supervisor, based on reasonable suspicion that substance abuse is a factor in
employment, may require an employee to be evaluated for illegal drug and alcohol
use and treatment by an employee assistance program or a doctor. An employee
may be required to participate in follow-up care as part of a comprehensive alcohol
and drug treatment program based upon medical advice.

When an employee is required to undergo treatment under this policy, the employee
may be required to authorize the following as a condition of continued employment:

e. Monitoring of the treatment program and the employee's participation by the
District Librarian; and

f. Submission to random blood and/or urine screening for alcohol and/or
drugs for a specific period of time, not to exceed thirty-six (36) months.

When an employee voluntarily enters a treatment program, which is not associated
with District intervention, testing and monitoring by the District will not be required.

Medical confidentiality will be preserved, subject to rights granted by the employee

29
September 2022



to the District Librarian to monitor the treatment and program compliance with a
health care provider in order to ensure compliance with conditions of employment
and ability to return to or remain at work.

14. Drug Testing Upon Reasonable Suspicion
Where a supervisory employee has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is under
the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs, including unlawful use of a controlled
substance without a valid prescription, the employee in question will be asked to
submit to discovery testing.
This may include urinalysis or a blood screen, or both, to confirm involvement with
alcohol or illegal drugs or that the employee is drug or alcohol free at the time in
question.

15. Consequence of a Positive Test
An employee who is found to be under the influence of or impaired by alcohol or
illegal drugs as a result of a test requested by the District, based upon reasonable
suspicion, will be subject to disciplinary action including suspension or termination.

16. Consequence of Refusal to Submit to Testing
An employee who refuses to submit to discovery testing for alcohol and illegal drugs
will be subject to suspension or discharge, or both. Alleged lack of reasonable
suspicion is not grounds to refuse to submit to a test; however, it is reason to
challenge discipline, if discipline is imposed based on the test result alone.

17. Testing Procedure

a. Employee Representation
When the employee is notified of a requirement to consent and submit to such
tests, the presence of a representative to witness the test can be requested.
The test may not be delayed unreasonably in order to wait for a representative.
The absence of a representative shall not be grounds for the employee to
refuse to consent and submit to such tests or searches. The presence of a
representative shall not disrupt or interfere with the tests or searches.

b. Authorization to Test
Before a supervisor, acting on behalf of the District under this policy, may
require an employee to consent and submit to any test, the supervisor must
first obtain concurrence from the District Librarian that the information
available to the District about the subject employee is sufficient to support
reasonable suspicion.

c. Procedure for Consent
The employee shall give consent to a blood, urine, or breathalyzer test, or any
combination, upon request, by signing a consent form. The form shall contain
the following information:

30

September 2022



e Employee's consent to release tests results to the District;

e The procedure for confirming an initial positive test result for a controlled
substance, including marijuana;

e The consequences of a confirmed positive test result for a controlled
substance, including marijuana;

e The consequences of a positive test for alcohol, under the circumstances;

e Alisting provided by the employee of legally prescribed and over-
the-counter medications, which may be in the employee'sbody;

e The right to explain a confirmed positive test result for a controlled
substance, including marijuana, or a positive test for alcohol; and

e The consequences of refusing to consent to the blood, urine, or
breathalyzertest.

18. Confirmatory Test
In the event that the blood or urine test results are positive for controlled
substance(s), including marijuana, the District shall require that a second
confirmatory test from the same sample be conducted, using gas
chromatography/mass spectrometry methods performed by a laboratory certified by
the National Institute on Drug Abuse. This test also must be positive before
concluding the employee has such substances(s) present in the body.

a.

September 2022

Employee Requested Test

If a blood or confirmed urine test is positive, the District will instruct the
laboratory to retain the blood or urine sample for a period of not less than
thirty (30) calendar days from the date the tests are complete, for the purposes
of allowing the employee to conduct an independent test at personal expense
at a laboratory approved by the District.

Chain of Evidence

The procedures to obtain, handle, and store blood and urine samples and to
conduct laboratory tests shall be documented to establish procedural integrity
and chain of evidence. Such procedures shall be administered with due regard
for the employee's privacy and the need to maintain the confidentiality of tests
results to an extent which is not inconsistent with the needs of this policy.

Notification
The employee shall be notified of the results of all tests conducted pursuant to
this policy. Employees who test positive shall be afforded an opportunity to

31



provide medical or other information that may explain the positive test result.
If a question exists, the available information will be reviewed by a licensed
physician with training in forensic drug testing.

19. Random Drug Testing
The District may perform random controlled substance testing for employees. The
dates for the tests will not be announced and will be spread throughout the calendar
year. An employee who is notified of selection for random testing must proceed to
the test site immediately.

20. “Post-Accident Testing”
In the event of an accident involving a commercial motor vehicle, the District will test
each driver who was performing safety-sensitive functions with respect to the
vehicle, if the accident:

b.

involved loss of human life;

the driver receives a citation under state or local law for a moving traffic violation
arising from the accident and one or more motor vehicles incurs disabling damage
as a result of the accident, requiring the vehicle to be transported away from the
scene by a tow truck or other vehicle, and/or bodily injury to a person who as a
result of the injury receives medical treatment away from the scene.

21. Definitions

a.

September 2022

"Reasonable suspicion” is defined as specific articulable observations by a
supervisory employee concerning the work performance, appearance (including
noticeable odor of an alcoholic beverage), behavior, or speech of the employee.
Any accident or incident involving physical injury to any person may be
considered as constituting reasonable suspicion for discovery testing for drugs
and alcohol, where human factors contribute to the incident and a question of
sobriety exists.

Reasonable suspicion testing may be based upon, among other things:

+ Observable phenomena, such as direct observation of drug use or
possession and/or the physical symptoms of being under the influence of
adrug;

e A pattern of abnormal conduct or erratic behavior;
e  Arrest or conviction for a drug-related offense or the identification of an
employee as the focus of a criminal investigation into illegal drug

possession, use, or trafficking;

¢ Information provided either by reliable and credible sources or
32



independently corroborated;

» Newly discovered evidence that the employee has tampered with a previous
drug test.

Although reasonable suspicion testing does not require certainty, mere "hunches" are
not sufficient to meet this standard.

b.

September 2022

"Under the Influence" is defined as any detectable level of a controlled
substance (in excess of trace amounts attributable to secondary exposure) in
an employee's blood or urine or any noticeable or perceptible impairment of
the employee's mental or physical faculties. With respect to alcohol, a blood
alcohol content of .04% constitutes under the influence while on duty.

"Controlled Substances" are defined as all forms of narcotics, depressants,
stimulants, hallucinogens, cannabis, and other controlled substances of which
the sale, purchase, transfer, use, or possession is prohibited or restricted by
The Federal Controlled Substances Act. "lllegal or controlled substances"
means a controlled substance as defined by Section 802(6) of Title 21 of the
United States Code, the possession of which is unlawful under Chapter 13 of
that Title. The term "illegal drugs" does not mean the use of a controlied
substance pursuant to a valid prescription or other uses authorized by law,
with the exception of marijuana.

"Over-the-Counter Drugs" are those which are generally available without a
prescription from a medical doctor and are limited to those drugs which are
capable of impairing the judgment of an employee and prevent the safe
performance of job duties.

"Prescription Drugs" are defined as those drugs which are used in the course
ofmedical treatment and have been prescribed and authorized for use by a
licensed practitioner, physician, or dentist.

“Searches”

Employees have no expectation to be free from the search of a locker, desk or
contents of other similar District controlled spaces. A search for contraband
within personally controlled spaces on District property (purses, garments,
briefcases, or a personal vehicle, for example) shall be based on reasonable
grounds or consent of the employee.

In accordance with the provisions of this policy prohibiting drugs in the
workplace or based upon legitimate concerns for the possession of other
unauthorized materials (such as firearms, explosives, or stolen property), this
policy constitutes formal notice of the District's intent to search premises,
persons and secured spaces, including vehicles parked on District property,

33



based upon reasonable grounds or consent. Searches shall be approved by the
District Librarian or his/her designee, and, if possible, notice to the employee
and an opportunity to be present shall be given.

g. “Refusal”

Failure to appear for testing without a deferral will be considered refusal to
participate in testing and will subject an employee to the range of disciplinary
actions, including dismissal, and an applicant to the cancellation of an offer of
employment. If an individual fails to appear at the collection site at the
assigned time, the collector shall contact the District Librarian to obtain
guidance on action to be taken.

POLICY 8.8: PREVENTION OF WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND
RETALIATION

A. Equal Opportunity Employment
It is the District's policy to employ, retain, promote, discipline, discharge, and otherwise
treat all employees and job applicants on the basis of merit, qualifications, and
competence, regardless of membership in any classification protected under federal or
Oregon law; the District to complies with all federal and state statutes on equal
employment opportunity.

This policy shall be applied without regard to any individual's sex, gender, race, color,
religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, military or veteran status, political
affiliation, sexual orientation, disability, or any other status protected by law. Actual or
perceived homosexuality, heterosexuality, or bisexuality are also categories of people
protected from discrimination in hiring, firing, discipline, and other terms of employment.

The District Librarian is the coordinator for the District's procedures for the
implementation ofthis policy. It is the intent and desire of the District that equal
employment opportunity will be provided in employment, promotions, wages, benefits,
and all other privileges, terms, and conditions of employment.

Lincoln County Library District is committed to a work environment in which all individuals
are treated with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to work in a professional
atmosphere that promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits unlawful
discriminatory practices, including harassment. Therefore, Lincoln County Library District
expects that all relationships among persons will be respectful and professional, free of
bias, prejudice and harassment in the workplace, at work related events, or in any activity
coordinated by or through the District. This policy applies to all employees, board
members, volunteers, interns, and any other person we interact with while accomplishing
the work of the organization.

September 2022



Lincoln County Library District has developed this policy to ensure that all its employees can
work in an environment free from unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation.
Lincoln County Library District will make every reasonable effort to ensure that all concerned
are familiar with these policies and are aware that any complaint in violation of these policies
will be investigated and resolved appropriately.

Discrimination, harassment, and retaliation are not acceptable.

Any employee who has questions or concerns about these policies should talk with the
District Librarian.

B. Retaliation
We encourage the reporting of all perceived incidents of discrimination or harassment and
prohibit retaliation against any individual who reports discrimination or harassment or
participates in an investigation of such reports.

C. Sexual Harassment
Sexual harassment constitutes discrimination and is illegal under federal and state laws. For
the purposes of this policy, “sexual harassment” is defined, as in the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission Guidelines, as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when, for example: a)
submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an
individual’s employment, b) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is
used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, or ¢) such conduct has
the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance or
creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 recognizes two types of sexual harassment: a) quid pro
quo and b) hostile work environment. Sexual harassment may include a range of subtle and
not-so-subtle behaviors and may involve individuals of the same or different gender.
Depending on the circumstances, these behaviors may include unwanted sexual advances or
requests for sexual favors; sexual jokes and innuendo; verbal abuse of a sexual nature;
commentary about an individual’s body, sexual prowess or sexual deficiencies; leering,
whistling or touching; insulting or obscene comments or gestures; display in the workplace of
sexually suggestive objects or pictures; and other physical, verbal or visual conduct of a
sexual nature.

Oregon Law provides further protection from sexual assault defined as unwanted conduct of
a sexual nature that is inflicted upon a person or compelled through the use of physical
force, manipulation, threat, or intimidation.

D. Harassment
Harassment on the basis of any other protected characteristic is also strictly prohibited.
Under this policy, harassment is verbal, written or physical conduct that denigrates or shows
hostility or aversion toward an individual because of his or her race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, disability, marital

35
September 2022



status, citizenship, genetic information, or any other characteristic protected by law, or that
of his or her relatives, friends or associates, and that: a) has the purpose or effect of creating
an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, b) has the purpose or effect of
unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance, or c) otherwise adversely
affects an individual’s employment opportunities.

Harassing conduct includes labels, insults or negative stereotyping; threatening, intimidating
or hostile acts; demeaning jokes; and written or graphic material that belittles or shows
hostility or dislike toward an individual or group that is placed on walls or elsewhere on the
employer’s premises or circulated in the workplace, on company time or using company
equipment by e-mail, phone (including voice messages), text messages, social networking
sites or other means.

Reporting an Incident of Harassment, Discrimination or Retaliation

Lincoln County Library District encourages reporting of all perceived incidents of
discrimination, harassment or retaliation, regardless of the offender’s identity or position.
Individuals who believe that they have been the victim of such conduct should discuss their
concerns with District Librarian or Board President - See the complaint procedure described
below.

In addition, we encourage individuals who believe they are being subjected to such conduct
to promptly advise the offender that their behavior is unwelcome and to request that it stop.
Often this action alone will resolve the problem. We recognize, however, that an individual
may prefer to pursue the matter through complaint procedures.

Following receipt of a complaint or concern management will follow-up every three (3)
months for one (1) year to ensure no further concerns or retaliation are experienced.
Employees should not wait for the management follow-up to share related experiences. If
an employee would like to discontinue the follow-up process a request must be submitted in
writing to the District Librarian.

Internal Complaint Procedure

individuals who believe they have been the victims of conduct prohibited by this policy or
believe they have witnessed such conduct should discuss their concerns with District
Librarian. If an employee is unable to reach that individual, please reach out to Board
President. We encourage employees to document the event(s), associated date(s), and
potential witnesses.

Lincoln County Library District encourages the prompt reporting of complaints or concerns so
that quick and helpful action can be taken before relationships become irreparably broken.
Early reporting and intervention have proven to be the most effective method of resolving
actual or perceived incidents of harassment. However, complaints and concerns may be
brought forward within five (5) years of the alleged violation. We encourage employees to
document the events, associated dates, and potential witnesses.

36

September 2022



Any reported allegations of harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be investigated
quickly. The investigation may include individual interviews with the parties involved and,
where necessary, with individuals who may have observed the event(s) or may have other
relevant knowledge. Lincoln County Library District will maintain confidentiality throughout
the investigatory process to the extent possible with acceptable investigation and
appropriate corrective action.

Misconduct constituting harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be dealt with
appropriately. Responsive action may include, for example, training, referral to counseling or
corrective action such as a warning, reprimand, reassignment, temporary suspension without
pay, or termination as Lincoln County Library District believes appropriate under the
circumstances.

False and malicious complaints of harassment, discrimination, or retaliation (as opposed to
complaints that, even if erroneous, are made in good faith) may be the subject of
appropriate disciplinary action.

G. Employment Agreements
No employee will be required or coerced to sign an agreement either requiring the non-
disclosure (restriction on sharing) of information related to discrimination or sexual assault
or requiring non-disparagement (restriction on stating anything negative) as a condition of
employment, continued employment, promotion, compensation, or the receipt of benefits.
An employee may request this type of agreement and, upon request, will be provided at
least seven (7) days to revoke it.

POLICY 8.9 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS POLICY

A. Employee Performance Evaluation
1. Purpose - Communication

Employee performance reviews are an essential communication process between an
employee and an immediate supervisor. Such reviews provide information relating to
merit, identify areas of training needs, target the strengths and weaknesses of the
employee's work performance, and measure the relationship between goals and
objectives and the individual employee's job performance. The purpose of evaluations is
to let employees know how well they are performing their job and whether they have
performance problems. It also serves as a basis of personnel decisions -- merit increases,
promotion, and termination.

2. Goal — Form Desirable Behaviors
The goal of the employee performance review process is to establish a pattern of
expected work performance and habits. The review process gives employees and
supervisors an opportunity to measure, review, and establish goals, reward or
acknowledge good performance, create incentives, and to detect and correct improper
behavior or activity and/or substandard work performance.

37
September 2022



3. Review Process
Performance reviews shall be completed at least annually and in accordance with the
guidelines and instructions set forth by the Board. Employees and supervisors are
required to sign the completed performance review forms saying that they have reviewed
the forms; this does not imply agreement with the evaluation. All performance reviews
will be reviewed by the District Librarian and placed in an employee's personnel file.
Employees will be provided with a copy of performance reviews.

4. Employees Affected
All regular employees of the District will be evaluated under this policy. The District
Librarian shall be evaluated by the Board based upon the consensus of the Board, using a
written performance evaluation.

5. Regular Review
All employees will be evaluated at least annually in the month of their anniversary date.

6. Pay and Probation Recommendations
A recommendation concerning qualification for a merit or step increase and/or passing
probation to regular employee status shall be set forth in a performance evaluation.

7. Supplemental Evaluation
A supplemental performance evaluation may be submitted on any occasion deemed
appropriate by a supervisor to clarify performance deficiencies and goals or plans for
improvement.

POLICY 8.10 PROBLEM SOLVING PROCESS

A. District Policy

The District strives for fair treatment of all employees, however, misunderstandings and problems
may occur in any organization. The District intends that such matters be resolved as early and as
fairly as possible. Disagreements relating to work assignments, pay, promotion, other
opportunities or any other aspect of the work relationship should be openly discussed with the
immediate supervisor. Supervisors and employees should make honest attempts to understand
each other’s perspectives and make every effort to resolve differences.

B. Steps to Solution

If at any time an employee believes fair treatment was not received, the employee may
report the problem to a department head or the District Librarian. Several steps are
suggested to ensure that a prompt and fair resolution is achieved.

o Talk with an immediate supervisor as soon as possible, who is the person responsible for
what goes on in your work areas. That individual will review your problem and keep you
informed of the progress toward a resolution.

38
September 2022



» Ifyou believe the problem is not properly resolved, you can file a written statement
concerning the problem with the District Librarian. You will receive a written reply from
the District Librarian within 10 working days after the written statementis received,
unless additional time is needed.

 The District Librarian will review any decision upon request, investigate further if
appropriate, and issue a decision. The employee's request for consideration of the
District Librarian should be made within 10 working days from receipt of the
supervisor's decision, as applicable. The employee may present further facts,
documents or argument.

» The District cannot guarantee that an employee's point of view will be accepted, but
supervisors and the District Librarian will always listen and make every effort to ensure
that problems are resolved fairly and in the publicinterest.

POLICY 8.11 DISCIPLINE

A. Discipline Generally
On-the-job conduct of District employees affects the ability of the District to serve its patrons
and affects the taxpayer's impression of District government. Employee safety, public safety,
productivity, and morale are dependent upon employee conduct.

Occasionally, it is necessary for supervisors to resort to corrective action when other actions
are inappropriate or where a particular employee fails to respond to informal guidance.

In order to provide a fair method of correcting, and when necessary, disciplining employees,
the District will use progressive discipline procedures where appropriate in a given situation.
This section concerning discipline does not apply to the District Librarian, who serves at the
pleasure of the Board of Directors.

This section establishes procedures and a process; it does not constitute the creation of a
contractual right to retain employment.

B. Discipline — General Guidelines
e Discipline may be initiated for many proper reasons, including, but not limited to,
violations of the work rules, insubordination, or poor job performance. The severity of
the disciplinary action generally depends on the nature of the offense and an employee's
work record and may range from verbal counseling to discharge.

e Progressive discipline for infractions includes, but is not limited to:

a. Step 1: Verbal counseling with a note to the personnel file;

39
September 2022



b. Step 2: Written counseling or warning;

c. Step 3: Any one of the following:

« Temporary reduction in pay in lieu of suspension;
e Suspension;
e Demotion; and

d. Step 4: Discharge.

Any or all of these steps may be utilized, depending upon individual circumstances and the
nature of the infraction. Exceptions or deviations from the normal procedure may occur
whenever the District deems it appropriate, case by case.

C. Suspension of Salaried Exempt Employees
No salaried exempt employee will be suspended by the District, except for serious
misconduct which does not warrant discharge and in such a case the employee must be
suspended for not less than one (1) full work week.

D. Application of Progressive Discipline
For performance deficiencies and minor matters, employees will normally be verbally
counseled. A supervisor may or may not choose to make counseling or the imposition of a
verbal warning part of the employee's personnel file by documenting what was said into a
memo.

if no other deficiency occurs during the next twenty-four (24) months, an employee may
request the warning be removed from the personnel file. Documents removed from

individual personnel files will be retained by the District in a separate confidential record
system not filed by name, which generally shall not be considered in personnel decisions.

In the event of two (2) or more performance problems or a more serious violation of a
District policy or rule, a written warning may be issued. The warning should be signed and
dated by the employee. An employee who disagrees with the facts in the warning may
submit a written response. It will be placed in the personnel file with the warning.

a. A written warning need not pertain to the same or similar matter (issue).

b. In addition to a written warning, the District Librarian may also suspend an employee,
without pay, for a period of up to two weeks (situation dependent) or take other
disciplinary action deemed appropriate. Prior to suspending an employee without pay,
the District Librarian will meet with and afford the employee an opportunity to respond.

c. The District may demote or reduce the pay of employees. A written statement of the

40
September 2022



reasons for such action shall be furnished to the employee and a copy shall be made a
part of the personnel file. An employee should sign the statement acknowledging a copy
has been received and may, in turn, file a rebuttal statement.

d. Discharge may result if the employee violates District policy, commits serious
misconduct, or fails to improve the level of dissatisfactory performance. However, this
statement does not limit the District’s right to end the employment relationship, with or
without cause, at any time.

e. An employee should not be reinstated or otherwise excused of misconduct, if to do so
would be contrary to public policy. In determining if reinstatement or other action would
be contrary to public policy, the District will look at public policy requirements as clearly
defined in statutes or judicial decisions, including but not limited to policies related to
sexual harassment or sexual misconduct, unjustified or egregious use of physical or
deadly force, and serious criminal misconduct, related to work.

Additionally, when an employee claims the employer's alleged previous differential
treatment of employees for the same or similar conduct is the basis for reinstatement of an
employee who has engaged in misconduct, the following principles apply:

a. Some misconduct is so egregious that no employee can reasonably rely on past treatment
for similar offenses as justification or defense to discharge or other discipline.

b. Public managers have a right to change disciplinary policies at any time, notwithstanding
prior practices, if reasonable advance notice is given to affected employees and the
change does not otherwise violate a collective bargaining agreement.

The District Librarian will conduct the conference and decide whether to impose
discharge, a lesser degree of discipline, or no discipline as appropriate.

E. Discharge Procedure

e Pre-Discharge Conference:
If the District Librarian determines there is cause for the serious discipline, up to the
discharge of an employee, the District Librarian shall notify the employee of the specific
reasons and that a suspension without pay, demotion, pay reduction, and/or discharge is
being considered. The employee shall be provided with the facts upon which the
contemplated disciplinary actions would be based. The District Librarian shall afford the
employee a formal opportunity to refute the charges orally or in writing. Once the
employee has been afforded an opportunity to refute the charges and explain the facts
and circumstances, the employee may be suspended without pay. An employee may be
put on administrative leave without pay at any time. If a pre-discharge conference is to
be held, it will be scheduled and held three (3) days after notice of action has been given.
The employee will be given adequate time to develop a response and to seek necessary
outside assistance, as the employee feels necessary. The time limits may be varied by the

41
September 2022



District to meet individual needs.
F. Appeal of Discipline Action

e Right to Appeal Discipline
Any regular employee subordinate to the District Librarian who has been suspended,
reduced in pay, demoted or dismissed, shall have the right of appeal to the Board of
Directors. Notice of the appeal must be filed not later than 10 days of the effective date
of the action. The notice of appeal shall include at least the following information: (a) a
statement of the complaint and the facts upon which it is based; (b) the remedial action
requested; (c) a statement of the reasons why the remedial action is appropriate; (d) a
statement of any policies, procedures, or law or rules which have not been adhered to or
which should be followed. The appeal generally will be heard by the Board of Directors
within 20 days after receipt of the request. The Board of Directors shall furnish the
District Librarian with a copy of the notice of appeal in advance of the hearing.

e Who May Appeal
Only regular employees have a right to appeal disciplinary actions. In addition to formal
appeals under this Section, the Board of Directors may give consideration to all
suggestions and complaints that concern the administration of the personnel policies.

e Investigations
In connection with an appeal or complaint, with respect to any matter arising under these
personnel policies, the District Librarian may conduct or cause an investigation to occur as
the District Librarian deems necessary. The investigator shall make a written report upon
all matters investigated under the personnel policies. A copy will be given to the
employee and placed in the personnel file.

e Hearings on Appeal
The Board of Directors shall set a hearing upon timely requests made under this policy. At
the time of the filing of the request of the appeal with the Board, the supervisor shall
supply the employee with an outline of the procedures used by the Board of Directors.
The decision of the Board of Directors shall include findings of fact and shall be final. The
employee and the supervisor shall be given written notification of the time and place of
the hearing.

The order of procedure at the hearing may be as follows, or as otherwise determined
as appropriate:

a. The supervisor or a designee will set forth the reasons for the action and the facts on
which it is based. The employee may conduct cross-examination, if appropriate.

b. The employee may present evidence in support of the appeal, with or without the
assistance of legal counsel or another representative.

42
September 2022



c. The supervisor or a designee may cross-examine or submit evidence in rebuttal or
both.

d. Opening statements, if any, will be brief and confined to the issues. Closing
arguments, if any, will be offered first by the supervisor or a designee and then by the
employee. The supervisor may offer rebuttal evidence, if desired.

e. Evidence of a type commonly relied upon by reasonably prudent persons in the
conduct of their serious affairs shall be admissible. Irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly
repetitious evidence may be excluded. Affidavits and counter-affidavits may be
acceptable as evidence. If either party intends to rely on an affidavit, it shall provide
the other party with such affidavit together with the name, address, and telephone
number of the affiant at least 10 days prior to the hearing or such affidavit shall be
inadmissible.

+ Conduct of Hearings. A hearing before the Board of Directors is intended
solely for the purpose of receiving evidence either to refute or substantiate
specific charges brought to the Board of Directors. The hearing shall be
conducted accordingly. The Board of Directors may impose limits on
questioning in the interest of the orderly conduct of the hearing and fairness.

» Counsel or Representative. In appealing a disciplinary action to the Board of
Directors, an employee may, but is not required to, have counsel or another
representative. The District’s counsel may assist the supervisor or District
Librarian.

f. If, after receiving evidence presented in hearings on disciplinary actions, the
Board of Directors finds that sufficient evidence supports the charges, that the
complained-of action taken by the supervisor was reasonable and was taken for
a proper reason consistent with policy, the Board may affirm the action; if they
find that the complained-of action taken by the supervisor was not so made, the
Board shall fashion an appropriate remedy and the personnel file shall be
revised accordingly or purged of any record inconsistent with the Board’s
determination. The Board, in lieu of affirming the disciplinary action, may
modify the discipline as the circumstances warrant.

» The Board may refer any issue to a Hearings Officer, who shall conduct the
proceedings in accordance with these rules. In such event, all provisions of
these rules relating to the duties and authority of the Board shall also apply to
the Hearings Officer in the conduct of the hearing. The Hearings Officer shall
issue recommended findings, which shall be reviewed by the Board based
solely on the record and applicable law. The Board may adopt the findings by
voice vote. In all other cases, the Board shall issue a final written decision
within 20 working days from receipt of the recommended findings.

43
September 2022



September 2022

44



Whistleblower Protections

Purpose

To provide and reporting procedures should a District employee become aware of improper
government action in accordance with Oregon Revised Statute 659A.200 to 659A.224.

L The District encourages any employee with knowledge of or concern of an illegal or
dishonest fraudulent District activity, including mismanagement (serious employer
misconduct having the effect of or potentially undermining the District’s ability to
fulfill its public mission), gross misuse or waste of public resources or funds, fraud,
abuse of authority, and substantial and specific danger to public health and safety
resulting from the action of the District, up to and including a criminal act, to report
that such an act has or may have been committed to the District Librarian or designee.
Examples of illegal or dishonest activities are violations of federal, state, or local laws;
billing for services not performed or for goods not delivered; and other fraudulent
financial reporting.

An employee may also provide the information to another District manager, a state or
federal regulatory agency, or a law enforcement agency. Alternately, disclosure may
be made to an attorney licensed to practice law in Oregon, when a confidential
communication is made in connection with the alleged violation and in furtherance of
the rendition of professional legal services to that individual.

For any employee wishing more information, further details can be obtained from the
District Librarian.

Il. An employee must exercise sound judgment to avoid baseless allegations. An
employee who intentionally files a false report of wrongdoing may be subject to
corrective action up to and including termination.

M. Whistleblower protections are provided to maintain confidentiality and to prevent
retaliation. While identity may have to be disclosed to conduct a thorough
investigation, in order to comply with the law, the identity of the individual making the
report will not be disclosed without that person’s consent. The District will not retaliate

45
September 2022



against a whistleblower. This includes, but is not limited to, protection from
retaliation in the form of an adverse employment action such as termination,
compensation decreases, or poor work assignments, and threats of physical harm. Any
whistleblower who believes retaliation has occurred is encouraged to contact the
District Librarian or designee immediately, although outside remedies, such as BOLI,
OSHA, or a civil lawsuit, are also available. A whistleblower’s right to protection from
retaliation does not include immunity for any personal wrongdoing that is alleged and
investigated.

IV.All reports of illegal and dishonest activities received by District personnel will be
promptly submitted to the District Librarian or a designee, who is responsible for
investigating and coordinating corrective action.

September 2022

46



Lincoln County Library District

As an employee of Lincoln County Library District, | acknowledge the following:

I have been provided with a copy of the Personnel Policy Manual. | understand that the Manual
contains important information about the District’s policies, work rules, and my benefits. | have
both read and understood the information in the policies and have asked a supervisor for the
clarification of any information | did not understand.

I acknowledge the Policy Manual is neither a contract of employment nor a guarantee of specific
treatment in any situation; that the organization has the right to change, modify, add to,
substitute, eliminate, interpret, and apply, in its sole judgment, the policies, rules, and benefits
described in this Handbook; and that the current Handbook supersedes all prior handbooks,
policies, and understandings related to the subjects it contains.

The Board of Directors are the only persons authorized to make changes to these policies and all
such changes must be in writing to be valid. Any changes to the content will be communicated to
employees via official notices.

I understand that, unless stated otherwise in an employment contract, my employment
relationship with the District is “at-will” and either the organization or | can end the relationship
at any time, with or without